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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “"Directors”) of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement £ E {5

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”),
| am pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30
June 2014.

The year ended 30 June 2014 has been a challenging year for
the Group as we faced additional competition within the industry
especially in the hospitality sector where some established
environmental service providers entered the housekeeping services
market.

However, the Group were able to continue to build on its success
one year after our successful listing on the GEM of Stock Exchange
in 2013. Our enhanced brand recognition, corporate governance
and service quality enable the Group to differentiate from our
competitors.

RESULTS

During the year ended 30 June 2014, we generated revenue of
approximately HK$193.1 million, which represented a decrease of
approximately 0.7% over the revenue for the year ended 30 June
2013 (2013: approximately HK$194.5 million).

The gross profit decreased by approximately 9.4% from
approximately HK$29.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2013 to
approximately HK$27.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The net profit after tax of our Group for the year ended 30 June 2014
was approximately HK$13.1 million, representing approximately
322.6% increase from that of previous year (2013: approximately
HK$3.1 million).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: HK$2.0 million).

4 PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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Chairman’s Statement £ &%

PROSPECTS

With the Statutory Minimum Wage ("SWM"”) set to be reviewed
in May 2015, our cost of services should inevitably increase.
Nevertheless, we trust that opportunity still exists despite the
market fierce competition. The trend to outsource environmental
services by our customers and the increasing number of
commercial and residential properties will stimulate the growth of
the environmental services industry.

The Hong Kong Government's target to reduce the municipal solid
waste disposal rate by 40% per capita by 2022 should enable
the Group to capture this opportunity and expand our waste
management and disposal and recycle services. Being one of the
most comprehensive service providers in the industry, the Group
shall continue to provide our view and opinion through public
consultation to assist in the development of a sustainable recycling

policy.

In fact, we are confident the Hong Kong Government environmental
policy shall provide new business opportunities and our integrated
business as well as the improving prospects in our industry shall
position us well for future growth and profitability.

Subject to the prevailing market conditions and the availability
of potential targets, the Group intends to explore opportunity to
acquire appropriate company(ies) to strengthen our service quality
and expand our service scope. As of 25 September 2014, the Group
had not yet identified any definite target.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our valued customers, business partners, and shareholders
for their persistent support, and express my appreciation to the
management team and employees for their valuable contribution
to the development of the Group. Finally, | would like to express
my sincere appreciation to the officers of Stock Exchange for their
guidance.

Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
Chairman of the Board

25 September 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 517 X 2T

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services which include the provision of cleaning and related
services for (i) public area and office cleaning services which
involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets, changing
rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings, residential complexes, shopping arcades,
hotels and their tenants and public transport facilities such as
airport, ferries, ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots;
(i) overnight kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and
hotels; (iii) external wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stone
floor maintenance and restoration services; (v) pest control and
fumigation services; (vi) waste management and disposal solutions
which mainly involve collection, transportation and disposal of
household waste, construction waste and trade waste and sales of
recyclable waste such as paper, metal and plastic waste collected
during our operations; (vii) housekeeping services where we provide
housekeeping services to carry out professional daily housekeeping
and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels and serviced
apartments; (viii) secure and confidential waste destruction for
commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; and cleaning
and waste management solution for renovated apartment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded stable growth in the commercial sector as we
were successful in bidding a number of new contracts. Most new
commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services in the Central area where customers traditionally demands
a higher service quality but also willing to pay a premium price.
Some of the new commercial contracts enable the Group to provide
additional tenants and one-off contracts in the tenanted area of the
building on a regular and ad-hoc or one-off basis.

The Group recorded double digit growth in the transportation sector
as a result of a new pest control contract for the airport in Hong
Kong as well as the result of the improved operating efficiency
in which we re-organized our collection routes by focusing on
higher value contracts and sub-contracted lower value contracts
out. During the year, the Group purchased (a 9 tonnes tail lift/
tipper truck and a 24 tonnes hook lift truck) to meet the increased
demand for our waste management and disposal services. Due
to fierce competition in contract price and labour in the hospitality
sector, the Group was not successful in renewing a number of
our housekeeping services contracts. The number of rooms to
which the Group provided housekeeping services decreased from
950 rooms to 430 rooms per month in 2013/14. We contributed
the reason for the unsuccessful renewals to the increased cost of
skillful room attendants. The Group was not prepared to hire causal
labour which typically is lower in cost but also in service quality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E 515 M 2T

Looking forward, we believe the fierce competition should continue
in the hospitality sector, especially for the demand of skillful room
attendants. In order to build up our labour force and group of room
attendants, the Group shall conduct additional training classes in our
training centers in Chai Wan. Our self trained room attendants can
ensure the Group to control our service quality.

Revenue from other sector mainly from individual shops/offices,
club houses and institutional buildings increased by double digit in
2013/14. Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and
service price is reviewable on an annual basis.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue
by different sectors which reflect the target clients of our
environmental services:
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HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

THET FHET
Commercial (EES 102,064 52.9 99,618 51.2
Hospitality i 27,764 14.4 40,648 20.9
Residential T=E 26,802 13.9 23,720 12.2
Transportation ek 21,713 11.2 17,905 9.2
Others HA 14,755 7.6 12,658 6.5
193,098 100 194,549 100

Service Contracts R &4

Contractor contracts are service contracts entered into mainly
with property management companies, owners of various building
premises, operators of hotels and public transportation facilities
as well as government and academic institutions and are awarded
to us through competitive tendering. Our major service contracts
cover services provided to some designated sectors which include:
(a) commercial sector which includes mainly office buildings,
shopping arcades and the tenanted areas therein; (b) hospitality
sector which includes hotels, hostel and serviced apartments;
(c) residential sector which includes residential complexes and
residential floors therein; (d) transportation sector which includes
public transportations and (e) other sector which includes
government and academic institutions and private clubs.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014, we had a total of 73 contracts
from the abovementioned five sectors representing a decrease
of approximately 12.0% from 83 contracts for the year ended 30
June 2013. Despite the decrease in number of contract on-hand,
the Group was able to provide more jobs for the tenant and ad hoc
cleaning service in the commercial and residential sector for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we would focus our resources in high margin
customers who are prepared to pay premium price for higher
service quality. We would continue to strengthen our waste
management and disposal services by upgrading our waste
collection fleet. To lower the cost of room attendants for the
hospitality sector, we shall conduct additional training and seminars.
Our improvement in the commercial sector should allow the Group
to build up reference for the provision of environmental services for
the premium commercial buildings.

Competition for labour shall intensify due to the expected
adjustment of the SMW in May 2015. From our experience, a higher
SMW shall draw labour from the environmental services industry to
other industries such as security service. To offset the increase in
labour cost, the Group shall transfer most of the added cost to our
customers.

Looking forward, the Group sees potential for the demand of
environmental services in the yacht and renovated apartment. We
would strengthen our marketing effort in hope to expand our market
shares in these sectors. We would also continue to consolidate our
resources to focus on high value customers to bring in additional
revenue by cross-selling other cleaning and waste management
services to our existing customers. We believe this strategy may
not only improve our revenue per customer but also increase
our profit margin as we could leverage our existing manpower to
perform services at location where we already have presence.

8 PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group reported a revenue
of approximately HK$193.1 million (2013: approximately HK$194.5
million), representing a decrease of approximately 0.7% as
compared with that for the previous year. The net decrease was
attributable to (1) a decrease in revenue from hospitality income
of approximately HK$12.9 million; (2) an increase in revenue
from transportation income of approximately HK$3.8 million; (3)
an increase in revenue from residential income of approximately
HK$3.1 million; (4) an increase in revenue from commercial income
of approximately HK$2.4 million and (5) an increase in revenue from
other income of approximately HK$2.1 million.

Cost of services

The Group's cost of services slightly increased by approximately
0.9% to approximately HK$166.1 million (2013: approximately
HK$164.7 million) for the year ended 30 June 2014 as compared
with that for the previous year. The increase in cost of services
was mainly due to: (1) increase in running costs of our car fleet and
(2) increase in sub-contractor fee as more sub-contractors were
employed, partially offset by decrease in direct labour costs as less
site staffs were employed.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014
decreased by approximately 9.4% to approximately HK$27.0 million
(2013: approximately HK$29.8 million) as compared with that for
the previous year. The gross profit margin of the Group decreased
to approximately 14.0% for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013:
approximately 15.3%). The decrease in gross profit was mainly
due to decrease in revenue and increase in cost of services as
mentioned in above.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains for the year ended 30 June
2014 increased by approximately 522.2% to approximately HK$5.6
million (2013: approximately HK$0.9 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The increase was mainly attributable
to the reversal of provision for long service payments, severance
payments, untaken paid leave, staff allowances and bonus, and
claims for the year ended 30 June 2014.
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Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 30 June
2014 increased by approximately 6.3% to approximately HK$15.2
million (2013: approximately HK$14.3 million) as compared with that
for the previous year. The administrative expenses mainly consisted
of auditors’ remuneration, legal and professional fees, staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration), depreciation expenses and
rental expenses. The increase in the administrative expenses was
mainly attributable to increase in Directors’ remuneration and
professional fee during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Finance costs

The Group’'s finance costs for the year ended 30 June 2014
decreased to approximately HK$0.4 million (2013: approximately
HK$0.6 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in incurrence of interest expenses on the car finance.

Net profit

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 increased by 322.6% to
approximately HK$13.1 million (2013: approximately HK$3.1 million)
as compared with that for the previous year. The increase in net
profit was mainly resulted from the recognition of one-off listing
expenses amounted to approximately HK$9.7 million for the year
ended 30 June 2013. If without the listing expenses, the Group
should have achieved a net profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$12.8 million for the year ended 30
June 2013, which is stable when compared with that for year ended
30 June 2014.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2014 was
approximately HK1.31 cents (2013: approximately HK0.41 cents
(restated)). Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic
earnings per share for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 as
the Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during
these years.

USE OF PROCEEDS
During the period from 17 June 2013 to 30 June 2014, the net
proceeds from the Placing had been applied as follows:
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Planned use

of proceeds as
stated in the
Prospectus
during the period

Actual use of
proceeds during

from 17 June 2013 the year ended
to 30 June 2014 30 June 2014
BRERME
FBRIER
—Z-=F FBRER
AATLRE HE-Z2-@
—Z-mF ~A=tH
RA=TH LLEE
BAnTERR MER AR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Continue to expand waste management BEEAENERREEE K
and disposal team 3,165 3,053
Strengthen our established position in the ZERMEEARE
environmental services industry in Hong Kong R % ARBL A 2,395 1,152
Continue to expand and develop our services BENBEE£RRRER
within the hospitality sector B RS 1,312 1,173
Expand the range of our service offerings BEREMRENREHE 643 -
7,515 5,378

Notes: Htat -

(a) The business objectives as stated in the Prospectus were based on the best (@) BREEFAEHOES B R IUAREERHRBR
estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group at the time of ERBHARRTROREDBTAKE  MAB/K
preparing the Prospectus. The use of proceeds was applied in accordance with BEETSNERBEREREM -
the actual development of the market.

(b) The unused net proceeds as at 30 June 2014 have been placed as interest (b) RZF-WEANA=THEHRBAOMERED

ERETEIF R FER BB IRRTT

bearing deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong.
Comparison of Business Plan with Actual Business XK 8EHERXKERNLR
Progress
The following is a comparison of the Group's business plan as
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 7 June 2013 (the
“Prospectus”) with actual business progress for the period ended
30 June 2014.

ARBBHA-ZE— = A+tHNHEKRE
RBEER] MEAE B EE 8 H2E
ECT-NESNAZTH BN ERER
ERILERIAT:

BHIERARAT « F352014 11
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Business plan up to 30
June 2014 as set out
in the Prospectus
BRERMHEEE
—E-NMFEARA=TH
EZ HIE |

Business strategy

S 3

Continue to expand our waste
management and disposal team
BEBEABRMOEDNEER
B & EK

Strengthen our established position in
the environmental services industry
in Hong Kong

ZERMEEBRERS
EANRRLE AL

Continue to expand and develop our
services within the hospitality
sector

BB BT LB R
AT PR TS

Actual business progress
up to 30 June 2014
BEZ-F—NF
ANA=+H
HWEREKER

Implementation plan

HiEst 8l

— To acquire additional specialized vehicles and cleaning
equipment

- FIMNBEERRIRGERMEER

— To recruit additional technical staff
- FEIMNEBRMET

— To advertise our services on online platform

- RBLFesERMNRSE

— To advertise our services in magazines and newspapers

- RAREBESERFINRS

— To continue to promote our services by direct mail and
distribution of leaflet and brochure

- AR RREE B N M T BT VA R T PIA IR

— To improve the existing website of the Company with
better navigation, design and photo

- BEARRRNREE  UREEEZR - R RRA

— To employ additional staff for the contracting team
- FINBBEANEKRET

— To recruit additional senior operation staff
- FIMBEEBREEERT

— To purchase additional and upgrade our equipment and
machinery and information technology system to
enhance our operational efficiency

- RROMNBE MIEFTHFINRME RERIA R E AR FZA - LA
RIS B

— To provide training to our staff and enhance facilities of
our training center

- RETRMEEIIREARMENDOORE

— To promote our service to our target customer within
the hospitality sector

- FABEEREAN B REPEERFHRSE

— To recruit more room attendants

- HEEZEHKE
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Business plan up to 30

June 2014 as set out
in the Prospectus

Actual business progress
up to 30 June 2014

BREERMSEE BEE-E-—NE
—E-NMFEARA=TH NA=+H
ST MEREBER

Business strategy

E S

Expand the range of our service -
offerings _

Implementation plan

HiEst 8l

BEREYEHH

AR PITR G A AR5 50 B

Notes:

To acquire waste shredding machines

7Y o

DT

Note 4
FizEa

— To recruit staff and provide training on waste separation

and recycling

- BFEBTIURMEEY DB REYED

— To participate in events held by environmental friendly

organisations

- 2EMRERBEENNEE

The Group is taking a strategic move to further utilize its competitive edge in
the waste management service by acquiring two specialized vehicles of a 9
tonnes tail lift/tipper truck and a 24 tonnes hook lift truck. The 9 tonnes tail
lift/tipper truck is deployed to collect recyclable items such as paper, metal
and plastic waste collected during our operations for resale and the 24 tonnes
hook lift truck is deployed for the operation at one of the major convention
and exhibition venues in Hong Kong after the Group successfully renewed its
contract.

To better maintain the operation cost of our waste management service, the
Group is in the process of hiring an additional fleet supervisor who can also
perform minor maintenance to our vehicles.

The Group has expanded our advertisements by engaging a leading online
search engine company to promote the Group’'s cleaning and waste
management services. Regular advertising and marketing campaigns were
carried out through the use of direct mail and distribution of leaflet and
brochure. The Group has upgraded to a new email and file server to enhance
our operational efficiency. We have hired an additional contracting staff to
promote our services and renew our service quotation in order to enhance our
profit margin. Finally, a senior operation manager was hired to improve our
operation efficiency and service quality by providing additional internal training
and product knowledge to our front line staff.

The Group has hired an additional 20 room attendants for our housekeeping
operations. As the competition for housekeeping market increases, the Group
shall focus on bringing in higher margin contracts rather than focusing on
increasing the number of rooms served.

The Group has started to promote its secure and confidential waste
destruction services to our existing commercial clients. We believe by
leveraging our relationship with existing customers, it may allow us to build up
a client base with lower administration and marketing costs.

R

AEBERREBMETE  HERBEIRRE
W(RE—WIOMRIRENE R —H24MEH R
B) E—SHEBHEEMEERRB I ENHF
B - 9MERELERRKRERNAREERR
BHRWEMGHEEERENIRREERY® (F
W BEAR - @ BRBRBEY) - 24 RE
AR AEBRNEESEP —EAFTEEERLE
BANE  WRALEABMRES OIRMERE -

RTBRERBEDEERGOLERN » A&H
EHRINBE-RERTE  AREBIESTATR
BRI EMAET PR

FEEBAESEE IEEB-—HIEMALR
R EQF HEAKENBTRZREDEER
o o AEEEBEBLREEE RN F
EX ERETEERTSERELE  AKH
TRE T AR TR SR MY B R 4t M iE R A RS
EERIEEEN - BRAERT —RAHNERT
SEMERMNREMERRERE  SERS
EFE B BATERFT — o REEL
B REMNARE TIREEZHREEI RE
mAl MR EERUERBEAE -

REBEBME  AKREEIEET20EF5
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HENFBMEENBNAL - MEFHREME
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Capital Structure

The Shares were listed on GEM on 17 June 2013. The share capital
of the Group comprises only ordinary shares. The capital structure
of the Group mainly consists of bank borrowing and obligations
under finance leases; and equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and retained earnings respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly,
taking into account the cost of capital and the risks associated with
the capital. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital structure
on the basis of a gearing ratio. This ratio is expressed by as a
percentage of total borrowings over the total equity.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group generally financed
its operations through internally generated cash flows and net
proceeds from the IPO.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$52.9 million (30 June 2013: approximately
HK$36.8 million), including cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$37.4 million (30 June 2013: approximately
HK$28.5 million). The current ratio, being the ratio of current assets
to current liabilities, was approximately 2.9 as at 30 June 2014 (30
June 2013: approximately 1.9) which remains healthy.

The Board considers that the Group's financial resources are
sufficient for its operation. If necessary, the Board would consider
either debt or equity financing, or both, for business development,
especially when appropriate business opportunities are identified
and market conditions are favourable.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio, which is based on the total amounts of bank
borrowing and obligations under finance leases divided by total
equity, was approximately 7.5% as at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013:
approximately 13.0%). The decrease was mainly resulted from
decrease in obligations under finance leases and increase in equity
due to increase in retained earnings for the year ended 30 June
2014.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Group's foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

The Group's remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and formulated on the basis of performance and experience
of the employees. The salary and related benefits of the employees are
rewarded on a performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.
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Capital Commitment
As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (30 June 2013: approximately HK$0.04 million).

Charges on the Group’s Assets

Our decrease in obligations under finance leases from
approximately HK$6.9 million as at 30 June 2013 to approximately
HK$3.6 million as at 30 June 2014, were primarily due to lesser
specialized vehicles we acquired using finance leases during the
year ended 30 June 2014. As at 30 June 2014, we had obligations
under finance leases of approximately HK$3.6 million, of which
approximately HK$2.7 million was repayable within one year. Such
obligations under finance leases were secured by the relevant
motor vehicles.

Save as mentioned above in this section, we did not have any
outstanding mortgages or charges, borrowings or indebtedness
including bank overdrafts, loans or debentures, loan capital, debt
securities or other similar indebtedness, finance leases or hire
purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances or acceptance
credits outstanding as at 30 June 2014 that have charges on the
Group's assets.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (30 June 2013: HK$NIl).

Information on Employees

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had 789 staffs in Hong Kong. Total
staff costs and related expenses (including Directors’ remuneration)
for the year ended 30 June 2014 decreased by approximately 6.2%
over that for the previous year. The net decrease was mainly due
to more sub-contractors were employed to substitute the site-staff,
off-set by increase in Directors’ remuneration.

Significant Investment Held
During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any
significant investment.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets
During the years ended 30 June 2014, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

For the year ended 30 June 2014, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries made by the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of ten Directors comprising four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (“Mr. Fan”), aged 65, was appointed
a Director on 31 May 2012 and was designated as an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company on 28 May 2013. Mr. Fan
has about 35 years of experience in the cleaning industry when he
founded the Group with his then business partner in July 1978. Mr.
Fan is primarily responsible for leading the strategic planning and
business development of the Group. Together with other members
of the senior management, Mr. Fan oversees all key aspects of the
operations of the Group. Mr. Fan has served as the director of PPC
since 1978 and PPS since 1986. Mr. Fan is the father of Ms. Maria
Fan and the father-in-law of Mr. Samuel Wong.

Mr. Cao Zhiwen (“Mr. Cao”), aged 40, was appointed as Director
and was designated as executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the
Company on 7 August 2014. Mr. Cao has approximately 17 years’
experience in business management and commercial investment. Mr.
Cao used to study at the Department of Computer Science of Jiaxi
Normal University and completed the EMBA program of Tsinghua
University. Mr. Cao is currently the chairman of the board of Shenzhen
Habala Asset Management Company Limited. Mr. Cao used to be the
chairman of the board of Shenzhen Xilang Science and Technology
Company Limited and Shenzhen Habala Recreational Vehicle
Investment and Development Company Limited.

Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel (“Mr. Wong”), aged 39, was
appointed an executive Director on 28 May 2013. Mr. Wong
oversees our contracting department and is primarily responsible
for setting sales and marketing strategies for our business.
Mr. Wong joined our Group in September 2009 as an assistant
to general manager. He has been a director of PPS and PPC,
respectively, since March 2010. Mr. Wong has around 10 years
of experience in sales and marketing. He graduated from Simon
Fraser University, Canada in 1998, with a Bachelor Degree in Arts
and obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
University of San Francisco, the United States, in 2005. Mr. Wong is
the son-in-law of Mr. Allan Fan and the husband of Ms. Maria Fan.
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Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian (“Ms. Hung”), aged 52, was appointed
an executive Director on 28 May 2013. She is primarily responsible
for all aspects of the operation team including the recruitment of
personnel, approval of cost budgets, quality control of cleaning
projects, procurement of cleaning materials and equipment and
workplace safety and site supervision of our Group. Ms. Hung
has extensive experience in the environmental services industry
as she has worked for our Group for over 20 years and has been
participating in supervising matters relating to workplace safety and
compliance matters, during her various positions in our Group, such
as, superintendent in operations department, deputy operations
manager (administration) and as our chief operations manager. She
is also responsible for the supervision of proper implementation of
safety improvement measures.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria (“Ms. Fan”), aged 36, was appointed
an executive Director on 28 May 2013. In January 2007, Ms. Fan
founded Iconic Room Company Limited, which engaged in the import
of baby products. Ms. Fan has been a director of PPS and PPC,
respectively, since April 2009. Ms. Fan obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Arts from Simon Fraser University, Canada in 2000. Ms. Fan is the
daughter of Mr. Allan Fan and the wife of Mr. Samuel Wong.

Mr. Woo Yik Man (“Mr. Woo"”), aged 30, was appointed as non-
executive Director on 28 July 2014. Mr. Woo is currently an executive
director of Rising Power Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8047)
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Woo holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the University of Hong Kong and a
Bachelor's degree in Laws from University of London. He is also a
holder of practicing certificates in securities and asset management
of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Financial
Advisers’ International Qualification of the Chartered Insurance
Institute with the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong. Mr.
Woo has over eight years’ experience in legal, corporate finance and
business consultancy fields and has worked in the corporate finance
departments in various law firms in Hong Kong.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP (“Mr. Ho"), aged 69, was
appointed an independent non-executive Director on 28 May
2013. He is a Barrister-at-law. Mr. Ho graduated from the Carleton
University, Canada in 1970, with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
majoring in Economics. He was called to the bar in the United
Kingdom in 1978. In 1980, Mr. Ho was called to the bar in Hong
Kong and has established his own chambers. He obtained a Master
degree in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1990. Mr.
Ho was appointed as a non-official Justice of the Peace in July
1992. From 1997 to 2006, he was a member of Long-Term Prison
Sentences Review Board. From 2001 to 2007, he was the deputy
chairman of Appeal Board on Public Meetings and Processions.
From 2003 to 2009, he was the chairman of Consumer Goods
Safety Appeal Board Panel. From 2002 to 2007, he was the
deputy chairman and from 2007 to 2010, he was the chairman of
Environmental Impact Assessment Appeal Board Panel.

Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (“Mr. Tong”), aged 66, was appointed
an independent non-executive Director on 28 May 2013. Mr. Tong
graduated from the University of Hawai'i at Manoa, the United
States in 1972, with a Bachelor Degree in Physics. Since 1988, he
has been a director of Daily Centre Limited engaging in the trading
of chemicals, dyes and pigments, aluminum honeycomb cores and
panels, drugs, etc. Since the 1980s, he has been running a business
in the name of Kien Yuen Company, which engaged in the trading
of Chinese fine arts products and later in industrial chemicals. Mr.
Tong has accumulated over 25 years of managerial experience in
business operations.

Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (“Mr. Yu”), also known as Mr. Yu Tat
Kong, Peter, aged 64, was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 28 May 2013. He obtained a Bachelor Degree in Science
from the University of Manitoba, Canada in 1971 and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of British
Columbia, Canada in 1973. He was a Certified Hotel Administrator
from June 1994 to June 1999 and was admitted as an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of British
Columbia Canada and designated as a chartered accountant in
December 1979. He has years of local and international experience
in the fields of food and beverage operation, hotel operation,
ownership and management, property investment, finance
and accounting. Mr. Yu joined Miramar Hotel and Investment
Company Limited (“Miramar”), a company listed on the Main
Board (stock code: 71), which principally engaged in property
investment, property development and sales, hotel ownership and
management, food and beverage operation and travel operation, in
1996 as the group general manager and was appointed as a board
member of Miramar in 1997. Mr. Yu was also a qualified accountant
of Miramar from 2004 to 2006. Mr. Yu resigned as an executive
director and group general manager of Miramar in January 2009.
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Mr. Lo Wing Sang (“Mr. Lo”), aged 47, has over 20 years of
experience in management, auditing and corporate finance,
and had worked in a large international accounting firm. He is
a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate member of both The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is also a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Since January
2013, Mr. Lo has been appointed as an executive director and
deputy chief executive officer of Time Watch Investments Limited
(stock code: 2033). He also worked as a vice president — finance
(group account), the company secretary and qualified accountant of
Pico Far East Holdings Limited (stock code: 752) from December
1995 to August 2004.From September 2004 to June 2005, Mr.
Lo worked as the company secretary and qualified accountant of
AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited (stock code: 77). Mr. Lo
also worked as the chief financial officer of China Sports Holdings
Limited from November 2009 to November 2010, and the chief
financial officer of American Smooth Wave Ventures, Inc., an US
company, from January 2011 to August 2011. Mr. Lo was graduated
from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly the City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong) with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in 1994.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Our senior management comprises our executive Directors, our
company secretary and the following persons:

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 30, is the general manager
of our contracting department, and is responsible for sales and
marketing activities of our Group. His responsibilities include but
not limited to assisting the supervision of the operation of sales
and marketing department, carrying out sales and marketing
strategies and preparing costing and pricing for tenders, contracts
and quotations. He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and
marketing executive. He was promoted to the contracting manager
of our sales and marketing department in January 2011 and was re-
titled as general manager-contracting of our contracting department
in May 2012. Mr. Lai graduated from the Lingnan University, Hong
Kong in 2008, with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is one of the
major comprehensive environmental service providers in Hong
Kong providing a comprehensive range of cleaning and related
services such as public area and office cleaning, overnight kitchen
cleaning, waste management and disposal, external wall and
window cleaning, stone floor maintenance and restoration, pest
control and fumigation as well as housekeeping.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 44 of this report. The Board does
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
30 June 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”")

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 28 October 2014 to Thursday, 30 October 2014, both
days inclusive. During this period, no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 October
2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company's share capital during the
year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 48 of this report and Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2014, the Company's distributable reserves, including
the share premium account, calculated under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$11.2 million in
surplus.

BANK BORROWING AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the Group's bank borrowing and other borrowings are
set out in Notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial statement
respectively.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year ended 30
June 2014 (2013: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group's results and financial position for the last
three financial years is set out on page 128 of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group's revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group's major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2014 is as
follows:
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The largest customer BAEP 21.8%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 60.9%
Subcontracting costs DEKAR

The largest subcontractor AN ERE 39.7%
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate AARDBEAR 81.0%
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During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and
suppliers.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2014 are set out
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
Mr. Cao Zhiwen

Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel
Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian

(appointed on 7 August 2014)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria

Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 28 July 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014)
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of one year subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the
articles of association of the Company. In the case of Mr. Fan Shek
Cheong, Allan, Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel and Ms. Hung Sui Hing,
Lilian, their service term commenced on 28 May 2013. In the case
of Mr. Cao Zhiwen, his appointment term commenced on 7 August
2014.
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Each of the non-executive Directors were appointed without a
specific employment tenure, but subject to retirement by rotation
and reelection at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. In the case of Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria, her
appointment term commenced on 28 May 2013. In the case of Mr.
Woo Yik Man, his appointment term commenced on 28 July 2014.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed
without a specific employment tenure, but subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In the case of Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus,
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP and Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick, their
appointment term commenced on 28 May 2013. In the case of
Mr. Lo Wing Sang, his appointment term commenced on 4 August
2014.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of
the Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 16
to 19 of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees,
as well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The
Group carries out staff performance appraisal once a year and
the assessment result is used for salary reviews and promotion
decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus
regularly provides internal and external training for its staff to
enhance their skills and knowledge. The remuneration of the
Directors is determined with reference to the duties and level of
responsibilities of each Director, the remuneration policy of the
Group and the prevailing market conditions.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES
Particulars of the pension schemes are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme has been adopted to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interest. Details of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options have been granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2014, none of the Directors
and the chief executive and their respective associates had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within of the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities On the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Name of the
Company in
which interest
Name of Director is held Capacity
REPEEREN
BEpg LS &t
Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan The Company Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 1)
BRERE NG REHIRRNER (M 1)
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria ~ The Company Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2)
BRERT NG| REHRRNER (H72)
Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel The Company Family interest (Note 3)
B2V vk YN FEER (HH3)
Notes:
1. Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan beneficially owns 100% equity interest in Viva Future

Group Ltd. that acquired the shares in the Company. Therefore, Mr. Fan Shek
Cheong, Allan is deemed to be interested in 52,000,000 Shares held by Viva
Future Group Ltd. On 19 December 2013, Viva Future Group Limited had charged
225,000,000 shares out of 525,000,000 shares as security in favour of Mr. Fong
Shing Kwong, Michael for a facility granted to Viva Future Group Limited.

2. Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria beneficially owns 100% equity interest in
Renowned Ventures Ltd. that acquired the shares in the Company. Therefore,
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria is deemed to be interested in 175,000,000 Shares
held by Renowned Ventures Ltd.

3. Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel is the spouse of Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria.
Accordingly, he is deemed to be interested in the Shares owned/held by Ms.
Fan Sheung Ting, Maria (by herself and through Renowned Ventures Ltd.) by
virtue of the SFO.

EERFTRTHRAEBREAQARG R
HEROHES AR

BRTIXHEEEN RZE—NFEANA=T
A BEERFTETBRABRFESESE M

BATHEARARKNERRLIE (EXRLE
BEBIESTNEBHFRBEKRD ([EHRH
BB ) BEXVER) BRG - ARG RES
FHEA SRR EREA T E RN AR EIRE
BAERBEEAEI2EMEENELMN
TEAERTAE  RERBEEBBAERSAT
BRAR ([BXA]) AR (RIER]) FS
EBA(TAIZR EHRE ) FE5.461KEF
5.68 T AR A LB R TS SAR ¢

Percentage of
total issued
share capital in
the Company
BALNREH
BRATRA
Bl

Total number
of ordinary
shares

Long/short
position

EERAR e/ %R

300,000,000 Long 30.0%
e
Short
b}
175,000,000 Long

53
175,000,000 Long

e

225,000,000 22.0%

175%

17.5%

Bt

1. SBA 8 Sk H & A Viva Future Group Ltd.
100% M A#ES » i Viva Future Group Ltd. 8 A
TARARD - Bt - BASEEWER RBEViva
Future Group Ltd.#£#952,000,000 & 17
AR RZT—=F+=-A+NA  Via
Future Group Limited # 525,000,000 % % {5 &
##9 225,000,000 A A% 17 #E# F 5 E R e A - 1E
/A Viva Future Group Limited XL E R FER o

2. B iEZ - E25 B Renowned Ventures Ltd.
100% f& A # %5 © i Renowned Ventures Ltd.
BATARARD - At - BREBZTHEE/TE
Renowned Ventures Ltd.#%5 7 #)175,000,000f%
B A s

3. BREEADHBELLTOERRS - Fit - RIEF
%&Hﬂaﬂﬂﬁﬂ FTEAREERRAREHER
+ (KR AMFEiBRenowned Ventures Ltd.) BT
B/ FHAENRDPEEER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2014, no person other
than certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any members of the Group.

Name of the
company in
which interest
Name of Shareholder is held Capacity
RERERREED
RRER NAER af
Viva Future Group Limited The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1)
NG| ERBANNHT)
Renowned Ventures Limited The Company Beneficial owner (Note 2)
NG| ERBANNH2)

Mr. Fong Shing Kwong, Michael The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1)

AEREE NG| ERBANNHT)

Ms. Chong Suk To, Ida The Company Family interest (Note 3)

Lt YN FEER (H:23)

Ms. Sheung Lay Lay, Lillian The Company Spouse interest (Note 4)

HEENT NG| AR (fd4)

Notes:

1. Viva Future Group Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan. On
19 December 2013, Viva Future Group Limited had charged 22,500,000 shares
as security in favour of Mr. Fong Shing Kwong, Michael for a facility granted to
Viva Future Group Limited.

2. Renowned Ventures Limited is 100% owned by Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria.

3. Ms. Chong Suk To, Ida is the spouse of Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan.
Accordingly, she is deemed to be interested in the shares held/owned by Mr.
Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (by himself and through Viva Future Group Limited) by
virtue of the SFO.

4. Ms. Sheung Lay Lay, Lillian is the spouse of Mr. Fong Shing Kwong, Michael.

Accordingly, she is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Mr. Fong
Shing Kwong, Michael by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates including spouses and children under 18
years of age was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire Shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year
ended 30 June 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES
During the year ended 30 June 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public during
the year ended 30 June 2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’'S INTEREST IN THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2014, as notified by the Company’s compliance
adviser, Cinda International Capital Limited (the “Compliance
Adviser"”), except for the compliance adviser agreement entered
into between the Company and the Compliance Adviser dated
6 June 2013, neither the Compliance Adviser nor its directors,
employees or associates had any interests in relation to the
Company which is required to be notified to the Group pursuant to
Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the reporting period and up to date of this report, none
of the Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective
associates as defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
None of the Directors, controlling Shareholders and their respective
associates has any other connected transaction with the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2014.

The material related party transactions are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group's corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 30 to 41 of
this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company was informed by Viva Future Group Limited
("Viva Future”), the controlling shareholder of the Company
and a company wholly-owned by Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
("Mr. Fan”), an executive director of the Company, that on 25
July 2014, Viva Future entered into transfer documents for the
disposal of in aggregate of 280,000,000 shares (the “Shares”)
in the capital of the Company held by it to five investors, namely
Xin Hong, Zhao Han, Lai Junning, Fu Wenhui and Lin Shangquan
(collectively the “Investors”) as to 20,000,000, 130,000,000,
45,000,000, 45,000,000 and 40,000,000 Shares at HK$16,400,000,
HK$87,100,000, HK$34,650,000, HK$32,400,000 and
HK$32,800,000 respectively. To the best knowledge, information
and belief of the Directors, the Investors are independent third
parties not connected with the Company and its connected persons
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) (such disposals shall be
collectively referred to as the “Disposals”). Shares disposed via
the Disposals represent in aggregate approximately 28% of the
total issued share capital of the Company (the “Share Capital”).
Following the Disposals, the total interests of Mr. Fan in the
Shares including family and other interests within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) are 420,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 42% of the Share Capital, of which 225,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 22.5% of the Share Capital, had
been charged as security (the “Charged Shares”) in favour of Mr.
Fong Shing Kwong, Michael (“Mr. Fong”) for a facility granted to
Viva Future.

On 4 August 2014, the Company received a notice from Mr. Fan
that the Charged Shares have been released by Mr. Fong and the
relevant registration procedures for the release of charge of the
relevant Charged Shares have been completed.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2014 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
which shall retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2014
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30 June 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Code for the year ended 30 June 2014, except for the deviations of
Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.2.7.

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and managing
director should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year under review, the roles of chairman
and managing director of the Company were performed by the
executive Director, Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan. The Company
considered that the combination of the roles of chairman and
managing director could effectively formulate and implement the
strategies of the Company. The Company considered that under
the supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive
Directors, a balancing mechanism existed so that the interests
of the Shareholders were adequately and fairly represented. The
Company considered that there was no imminent need to change
the arrangement.

Under the Code provision A.2.7, the chairman of the Board should
at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) without the
executive Directors present. During the year under review, the
chairman of the Board did not hold such kind of private meetings
with the non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Board
considered that it was unnecessary as it would be more transparent
to let the non-executive Directors speak out their views to all
executive Directors in the full Board meetings which would be held
at least four times a year. Besides, the chairman of the Board, being
an executive Director himself, always welcomes all non-executive
Directors to directly communicate with him via his email or phone
to discuss any matters of the Company from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding
them of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealings throughout the period under review. The
Company was not aware of any non-compliance in this respect
throughout the year ended 30 June 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company. Matters reserved for the Board
include, but not limited to:

° approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and
annual budgets;

° oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

° approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

° approval of major changes to the Group’'s corporate

structure, management and control structure;

° approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
° responsible for internal control and risk management; and
° approval of matters in relation to Board membership and

Board remuneration.
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The Board currently comprises ten Directors, including four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise in order to achieve a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. The composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
Mr. Cao Zhiwen

Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel
Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria
Mr. Woo Yik Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP

Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick

Mr. Lo Wing Sang

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 16
to 19 of this report.

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong Allan, the chairman and an executive Director
is the father of Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria and the father-in-law
of Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel. There are no relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
among other members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent. None of the independent non-executive Directors has
served the Company for more than 9 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified
in Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include reviewing
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management, our Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements (including the GEM Listing
Rules) and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code
provision A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional
development. During the year, the Company had arranged a
training session to all Directors in regards to director’s duty which
was conducted by an external professional firm. In addition,
Directors also reviewed the reading materials related to corporate
governance and regulations that provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal
and regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of one year subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the
articles of association of the Company. In the case of Mr. Fan Shek
Cheong, Allan, Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel and Ms. Hung Sui Hing,
Lilian, their service term commenced on 28 May 2013. In the case of
Mr. Cao Zhiwen, his appointment term commenced on 7 August 2014.

Each of the non-executive Directors were appointed without a
specific employment tenure, but subject to retirement by rotation
and reelection at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. In the case of Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria, her
appointment term commenced on 28 May 2013. In the case of Mr.
Woo Yik Man, his appointment term commenced on 28 July 2014.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed
without a specific employment tenure, but subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In the case of Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus,
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP and Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick, their
appointment term commenced on 28 May 2013. In the case of Mr.
Lo Wing Sang, his appointment term commenced on 4 August 2014.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
at each AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for
reelection at the AGM. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), to oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. Their respective terms of reference are set out
in the Company's website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C3.3 of the
Code.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other
things, reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control systems, as well as the overall risk management
of the Group, reviewing the consolidated financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group, and
reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of audit work of the
external auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (CA. Canada) (Chairman)
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014)
The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified
industry experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Group the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters
and the above audited annual results of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2014.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings
are as follows:

Members Attend/
Eligible to attend
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus (CA. Canada) (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP 4/4
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick 4/4
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014) 0/0
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28
May 2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5.2 of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, identifying and nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-appointment
of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus
Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014)
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance in
compliance with paragraph A.5.6 of the Code.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee shall carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education background,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, and also the Company's needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. Qualified
candidates then be recommended to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee
meeting are as follows:

Members Attend/
Eligible to attend
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP (Chairman) 11
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick mnm
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus A
Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan 11
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014) 0/0
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28
May 2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.1.2 of the Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
among other things, formulating and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy, determining the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (Chairman)
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014)
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
under review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are as follows:

Members Attend/
Eligible to attend
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick (Chairman) 11
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP 11
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus 11
Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan 11
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014) 0/0

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year,
and Directors shall receive at least 14 days prior written notice of
such meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code.
Agendas and accompanying papers are sent not less than 3 days
before the date of Board meetings to ensure that the Directors are
given sufficient time to review the same.

During the year under review, the Board held 5 regular board
meetings and 2 general meetings. The Directors attended those
meetings in person, by phone or through other electronic means of
communication.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings
during the year under review is set out below:

Members Attend/

Eligible to attend

Board General
Meeting Meeting

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (Chairman) 5/5 2/2
Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel 5/5 2/2
Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian 5/5 2/2
Mr. Cao Zhiwen (appointed on 7 August 2014) 0/0 0/0

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria 4/5 0/2
Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 28 July 2014) 0/0 0/0

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus 4/5 0/2
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth, JP 4/5 1/2
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick 4/5 0/2
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 4 August 2014) 0/0 0/0

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written
resolutions were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings
and written resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available to all Directors.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group in
accordance with relevant law and disclosure requirements under
the Listing Rules.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in “Independent Auditors’ Report” section on pages 42 and 43 of
this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit services provided by the
Company’s auditors during the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted
to HK$400,000. No non-audit services were provided by the
Company's auditors during the year ended 30 June 2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the assets of the Group
and the Shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the
effectiveness of such systems. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the internal control systems
and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls, risk management functions, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company.

The Company have formed an internal control committee (the
“Internal Control Committee”) in February 2013, which comprises
Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian (executive Director and chief operations
manager); Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel, (executive Director and
compliance officer) and Mr. Tsui Wing Tak (HKICPA), an external
consultant engaged in December 2012 as head of our internal audit
who is responsible for conducting regular internal control review
of our Group and overseeing the functions of our Internal Control
Committee. During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Internal
Control Committee has updated and implemented the internal
control policies and procedures, according to the recommendations
given by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company's forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on
30 October 2014.

Mr. Cao Zhiwen (“Mr. Cao”), aged 40, was appointed as Director
and was designated as executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the
Company on 7 August 2014. Mr. Cao has approximately 17 years’
experience in business management and commercial investment.
Mr. Cao used to study at the Department of Computer Science
of Jiaxi Normal University and completed the EMBA program
of Tsinghua University. Mr. Cao is currently the chairman of the
board of Shenzhen Habala Asset Management Company Limited.
Mr. Cao used to be the chairman of the board of Shenzhen Xilang
Science and Technology Company Limited and Shenzhen Habala
Recreational Vehicle Investment and Development Company
Limited.
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Mr. Woo Yik Man (“Mr. Woo”), aged 30, was appointed as
non-executive Director on 28 July 2014. Mr. Woo is currently an
executive director of Rising Power Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8047) and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor's degree in Arts from the University of
Hong Kong and a Bachelor's degree in Laws from University of
London. He is also a holder of practicing certificates in securities
and asset management of Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute and Financial Advisers' International Qualification of
the Chartered Insurance Institute with the Institute of Financial
Planners of Hong Kong. Mr. Woo has over eight years' experience
in legal, corporate finance and business consultancy fields and has
worked in the corporate finance departments in various law firms in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo Wing Sang (“Mr. Lo”), aged 47, has over 20 years of
experience in management, auditing and corporate finance,
and had worked in a large international accounting firm. He is
a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate member of both The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is also a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Since January
2013, Mr. Lo has been appointed as an executive director and
deputy chief executive officer of Time Watch Investments Limited
(stock code: 2033). He also worked as a vice president — finance
(group account), the company secretary and qualified accountant of
Pico Far East Holdings Limited (stock code: 752) from December
1995 to August 2004.From September 2004 to June 2005, Mr.
Lo worked as the company secretary and qualified accountant of
AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited (stock code: 77). Mr. Lo
also worked as the chief financial officer of China Sports Holdings
Limited from November 2009 to November 2010, and the chief
financial officer of American Smooth Wave Ventures, Inc., an US
company, from January 2011 to August 2011. Mr. Lo was graduated
from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly the City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong) with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in 1994.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board's
process and communications among Board members and with the
Shareholders and the management, and advising the Board and
its committees on all corporate governance matters. He reports to
the chairman of the Board and/or the Managing Director and his
selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a Board decision.
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The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the
company secretary to ensure that board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The company
secretary took more than 15 hours’ professional training for the year
ended 30 June 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at Unit
No.503C, Block B, Sea View Estate, 2-8 Watson Road, North Point,
Hong Kong. The company secretary of the Company is responsible
for forwarding communications relating to matters within the
Board's direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions and
inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of
relevant information to the Shareholders and the investing public.
The Company’s corporate website is www.hkpps.com.hk.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company's
corporate website as soon as practicable after their release. The
Company’s constitutional documents are also available on our
website. No significant changes were made to these documents
during the year ended 30 Jun 2014. Information on the website shall
be updated on a regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by
the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 7 1% &Rl &

Bl Hf &6 F % 5 & R 2 3

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group"”) set out on
pages 44 to 127, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 25 September 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income & & kEM 2 ENER
For the year ended 30 June 2014 # & = F—FNA =+ HIFFZ

2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FEx FHET
Revenue g 8 193,098 194,549
Cost of services Rk 7% Bk AR (166,106) (164,704)
Gross profit EF 26,992 29,845
Other income and gains E WA R 9 5,574 891
Selling and marketing expenses HERMGHEERX (831) (570)
Administrative expenses THAX (15,244) (14,299)
Listing expenses EmHX - (9,652)
Profit from operations &R F 16,491 6,215
Finance costs BB KA 10 (356) (577)
Profit before taxation BR A% AT A1 11 16,135 5,638
Income tax expenses FIS iR 12 (3,041) (2,539)
Profit and total comprehensive RRAGEB ANEEERR R
income for the year attributable ZHR BT
to owners of the Company 13,094 3,099
Earnings per share TRz & A
(restated)
CE=2D)
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — ER R #E (Bl 14 1.31 0.41
All of the Group's operations are classed as continuing. REBEETHBXEBEIEDBEAFELE
ﬁ% o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEFTFf sH B I 47 A BT ISR A0 — 39
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asat30June 2014 R-ZE—/QF N H=+H

4= A

e MBORK

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHx THET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R R 16 11,085 13,080
Deferred tax asset RIEFIHE E 26 12 12
Restricted bank deposits SR HIERITIE K 21 2,395 6,842
13,492 19,934
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 70 56
Trade receivables B Z W RIE 19 33,470 37,918
Deposits, prepayments and e BEANFREE
other receivables H h fE U SR I8 20 2,963 6,474
Restricted bank deposits 2R B ERITIE K 21 6,510 2,010
Fixed deposits T HATE =K 21 - 1,133
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 21 37,382 28,465
80,395 76,056
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 N RIE 22 4,289 5,967
Accruals, deposits received EEtER  BEBdEE &
and other payables o Ath FE AT FRIE 23 17,085 26,305
Bank borrowing RITIE 24 1,278 =
Obligations under finance leases A E AR 25 2,738 4,589
Tax payables FET AR IE 2,078 2,369
27,468 39,230
Net current assets REEEFE 52,927 36,826
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAS 66,419 56,760
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Obligations under finance leases RO E T & A 25 825 2,351
Deferred tax liability BEETRIBEE 26 1,127 1,036
1,952 3,387
Net assets BEEFE 64,467 53,373
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Asat30June 2014 R-ZE—/F NH=+H

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
Equity =

Capital and reserves ERR #EE
Share capital A&z 27 1,000 1,000
Reserves e 63,467 52,373
64,467 53,873

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 September
2014 and are signed on behalf by:

Fan Shek Cheong, Allan Wong Yin Jin, Samuel
Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position B & Ak 3%
As at 30 June 2014 R —ZF—/UFENA=+H

2014 2013
—E-lmF —T=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET THET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries REB R R AR 17 - =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR 5RI8 I H b fE YL 5RI8 20 184 5,292
Amounts due from subsidiaries i )= NGIE L 17 20 2,423
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEY 21 12,173 12,089
12,377 19,804
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals JETE H 23 79 4,703
Amount due to a subsidiary AN NG 17 93 =
172 4,703
Net current assets REEEFE 12,205 15,101
Net assets EEFE 12,205 15,101
Equity =
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital [N 27 1,000 1,000
Reserves (e 28 11,205 14,101
12,205 15,101

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue WEHEBREXE R —_ZE—NEAA -+ R H
by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2014 and are signed on RES= e & RIEETIZ - WH NESR
behalf by: rREE

Fan Shek Cheong, Allan Wong Yin Jin, Samuel SBAA FE%
Director Director EZF o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  FEMIMicFREK L S M IEHRERA—3D
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 43 & i Z 8K

For the year ended 30 June 2014 ElZ —F—F A =1 HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

LVNGTE 2N 3
Share Share Other Contribution Retained Total
capital premium reserve surplus earnings equity
BR& R A5 (E Htifife BB REEF ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TET TET TAT
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(W) (ko)
As at 1 July 2012 W-E-——%#+A—H 1,000 - - - 2,514 3,514
Profit and total comprehensive FNRTREERREE
income for the year - - - - 3,099 3,099
Effect of reorganisation Eeli-2ed (1,000) - 1,000 = = =
Effect of capitalisation issue BRMLETNFE 750 (750) - 21,400 = 21,400
Issue of shares upon listing EEETRR 250 29,750 - - - 30,000
Transaction costs attributable BITRMDEERZHA
to issue of shares - (4,640) - - - (4,640)
As at 30 June 2013 and RIB-—=FRXA=THR
and 1 July 2013 “E-=FtA-H 1,000 24,360 1,000 21,400 5,613 53,373
Profit and total comprehensive FNRTREERREE
income for the year - - - - 13,094 13,094
Dividend paid (Note 13) BERRE (HFE13) - (2,000) - = - (2,000)
As at 30 June 2014 RZE-MEXA=1TH 1,000 22,360 1,000 21,400 18,707 64,467
Notes: P aE -
(a) The amount represented the difference between the nominal amount of  (a) ZEEAARREBITRMOEERRESEE

shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital
of subsidiaries acquired under common control pursuant to the group

reorganisation (the

“Reorganisation”) in preparation of the listing of the

Company's shares on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 June 2013.

(b) The amount represented the amounts due to shareholders capitalised before
the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &2 &3R4

For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—[JF A=+ HILF&E

MER

2014 2013
—E-pmF —E—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation B 750 B A 16,135 5,638
Adjustments for: FEATHIA
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREENTE 5,162 4,526
Finance costs BB 356 577
Listing expenses recognised BEREMHAY - 9,652
Reversal of provision on impairment for bad RO R BB ER G
and doubtful debts - (34)
Reversal of provision for long service payment Bl = B AR % 1 (1,020) (761)
Reversal of provision for severance payment BEERERE (595) -
Reversal of provision for untaken paid leave BERIERE T RERE (591) =
Reversal of provision for staff allowances BEB TR RICARE
and bonus (2,045) =
Reversal of provision for claims B R ERAE (359) (1)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME -« BERZEKE
equipment (211) (40)
Interest income S WA (78) (34)
Operating cash flows before movements in 2REECEYRIILEHERE
working capital 16,754 19,623
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEm),/ m (14) 16
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 EWGRIER 4,448 1,741
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments and e ERNFIEREM
other receivables FEMFIER 2 (38 0) 3,522 (4,292)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B SR FIE (R ),/ #ihn (1,678) 2,187
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits received ETER EWiEe R
and other payables HiERFRIE R ), (4,610) 1,869
Cash generated from operations KRERYMEERS 18,422 21,044
Interest paid BAFIE (76) (135)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments MEMEREWH S D (280) (442)
Hong Kong profits tax refund BRFIEHRT 27 =
Hong Kong profits tax paid BN EENET (3,253) (5,984)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMEERSFE 14,840 14,483

FHHLAC AR A F) » 3R 2014
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. PPN =1
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &ra & MER
For the year ended 30 June 2014 ElZ —F—F A =1 HIFFZ
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHL
Investing activities REEH
Interest received EUH S 52 34
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits TEHFERORL,/(35h0) 1,133 (1,133)
Increase in restricted bank deposits R HIRITF RGN (53) (3,116)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE
plant and equipment REETE A 533 40
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BENEE (1,896) (2,245)
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFTRRESFE (231) (6,420)
Financing activities MEES
Decrease in amounts due to shareholders JE 5 AR SR SR TR R A - (12,100)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon listing RIS RS - 30,000
Payment for transaction costs attributable to XTI AR
issue of new ordinary shares B ZKA - (8,130)
Proceeds from new bank borrowing FTIBIRITIE SRS 50IE 2,000 =
Repayments of bank borrowings ERRITER (722) (7,284)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases EERERERE (4,970) (4,660)
Dividend paid EANLEE) (2,000) =
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEARSTE (5,692) (2,174)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B RBSEEYEMTEHE 8,917 5,889
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning REANREERBLSEEY
of the year 28,465 22,576
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RERNEERBLSEEY
of the year 37,382 28,465

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2012.
The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business
is located at Unit No. 503C, Block B, Sea View Estate, 2-8
Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company had its primary listing on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 17 June 2013. The Company acts as
an investment holding company. Details of the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Viva Future Group Limited (“Viva
Future”), which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong Dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied all of the following
new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that
are relevant to its operations and effective for the Group's
financial year beginning on or after 1 July 2013.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
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—REHR
RRBR-_ZE——RHA=+—H
ETREHETMA YT AEREER
DA ARQF AT M ERE LR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111,Cayman Islands &K A & #) &=
TEEMBUREBILAEEE2-85%
BRAEBMESNCE °

RARABRZTE—=F"ATtHEKX
EBIMAEIER /e RRRIREK
BERAB - HFrEZWBAAEE
EBHBERNTE 17 RRFRES
ERR ARANERERRAAR
Viva Future Group Limited ([Viva
Futurel) r ZRARINEBRXES
([REREXHES])EMKIL - K3
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FE R 3 5] RS R] BB M I R
SR ((EBHBHREER
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BERMAG([EAGTHAE])
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HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial

Statements
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

The impact on application of these new and revised HKFRSs
is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about:

(a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

As the Group does not have any offsetting arrangements
or any master netting agreements in place, the application
of the amendments has had no material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts recognised in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11
Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group
as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met
for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included in
HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over an
investee. Some guidance included in HKFRS 10 that deals
with whether or not an investor that owns less than 50% of
the voting rights in an investee has control over the investee
is relevant to the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers, has been incorporated in
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how
a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under
HKFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements
— joint operations and joint ventures. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is determined
based on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint
arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form
of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts
and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint
venturers) have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three types of joint
arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of
joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined
based on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint
arrangement that was established through a separate entity
was accounted for as a jointly controlled entity).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets
jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and its
expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the
applicable standards.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13
is broad; the fair value measurement requirements of
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories or
value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1 January
2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions were given
to entities such that they need not apply the disclosure
requirements set out in the standard in comparative
information provided for periods before the initial application
of the standard. In accordance with these transitional
provisions, the Group has not made any new disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013 comparative period.
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of
HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:

° amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements;
o amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment; and

° amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement
of financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify
that an entity is required to present a third statement of
financial position only when the retrospective application,
restatement or reclassification has a material effect on the
information in the third statement of financial position and
that related notes are not required to accompany the third
statement of financial position.

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and
as inventory otherwise.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 (continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.

Except for the above, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs had no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years.

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Hedge Accounting and
amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39*

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures*

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities’
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers®
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38 (Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41 (Amendments)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendments)

Defined Benefits Plans:
Employee Contributions?

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount and
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Accounting’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
earlier application permitted

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted

3 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

4 no mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

5 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
earlier application permitted

6 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with

earlier application permitted
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a significant impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities (e.g. the Group’s available-for-sale investments may
have to be measured at fair value at the end of subsequent
reporting periods, with changes in the fair value being
recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the Group's financial
assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the
related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities in the future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) Investment Entities

The investment entities amendments apply to a particular
class of business that qualify as investment entities. The
term ‘investment entity’ refers to an entity whose business
purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income or both. An investment
entity must also evaluate the performance of its investments
on a fair value basis. Such entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension
funds, sovereign wealth funds and other investment funds.

Under HKFRS 10, reporting entities were required
to consolidate all investees that they control (i.e. all
subsidiaries). Preparers and users of financial statements
have suggested that consolidating the subsidiaries of
investment entities does not result in useful information
for investors. Rather, reporting all investments, including
investments in subsidiaries, at fair value, provides the most
useful and relevant information.

In response to this, the amendments provide an exception
to the consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 and require
investment entities to measure particular subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them.
The amendments also set out disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2014 with
early adoption permitted in order to allow investment entities
to apply the amendments at the same time they first apply
the rest of HKFRS 10.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27
(2011) will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosure for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 are to remove certain
unintended disclosure requirements which may be
introduced by the consequential amendments to HKAS
36 when HKFRS 13 was issued. Furthermore, these
amendments require the disclosure of additional information
about the fair value measurement when the recoverable
amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs
of disposal. The amendments to HKAS 36 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Earlier application is permitted. However, an entity may not
apply those amendments in periods (including comparative
periods) in which it does not also apply HKFRS 13.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 36 will have no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The narrow-scope amendments will allow hedge accounting
to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been
designated as a hedging instrument, is novated to effect
clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or
regulation, if specific conditions are met (in this context, a
novation indicates that parties to a contract agree to replace
their original counterparty with a new one).

This relief has been introduced in response to legislative
changes across many jurisdictions that would lead to the
widespread novation of over-the-counter derivatives. These
legislative changes were prompted by a G20 commitment to
improve transparency and regulatory oversight of over-the-
counter derivatives in an internationally consistent and non-
discriminatory way.

Similar relief will be included in HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (continued)

The amendments will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 39 will have no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 is an interpretation of HKAS 37 and
addresses how an entity should account for liabilities to pay
levies imposed by governments, other than income taxes,
in its financial statements. The principal question raised was
about when the entity should recognise a liability to pay a
levy. It clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. HK(IFRIC) —
Int 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014 with earlier application permitted.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate

that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost, it derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost and recognises the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets. The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of any investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
beinitially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

[f the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
business in which the common control combination occurs
as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’'s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect
to goodwill or any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the
controlling party’s interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Merger accounting for common control
combination (continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of common control
combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered
as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or business have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration,
cost of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or
losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the beginning of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and
overhaul costs, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 are
as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 2 to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Cost is
assigned to individual items on the weight-average basis. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, cash investments with a
maturity of three months or less from date of investment and
bank overdrafts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligations (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligations.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligations
for the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligations. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligations, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Provisions shall be reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
the provision shall be reversed.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

When the cost of cleaning services to fulfil the obligation
under the contract exceeds the revenue, a provision for
onerous contracts would be made. In estimating the amount
by which the cleaning cost are expected to exceed the
revenue, management takes into account the cost of fulfilling
the obligation under the contract and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfill it, which is the lower
will be recognised as the unavoidable costs.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group it
is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligations cannot be measured
reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as obligations under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBUR (F)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies 4 ik

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is HK$. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$ which is the Group's presentation currency. This
is also the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’'s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gain
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HKS$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Group are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposal of associates or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing for the reporting period. Exchange difference
arising are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share option expenses

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose to attract, retain and reward the eligible persons and
to provide the eligible persons an incentive or reward for their
contribution to the Group.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, restricted bank deposits, fixed
deposits and cash and cash equivalents which fall within the
category of loan and receivables. The accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets designated as
at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loan and receivables

Loan and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loan and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, restricted bank
deposits, fixed deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b) breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. WWhen
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premium or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities designated as at financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals,
deposits received and other payables, obligations under
finance leases and bank borrowing) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs

The Group's contribution to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plans are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the year incurred and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discount.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.

For service contract relates to routine cleaning services, the
service income will be recognised on a straight-line basis
over the contract terms as the work is performed.

For services that are provided on ad-hoc basis, service
income is recognised upon completion of the provision of
such ad-hoc services.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxation profit differs from profit as reported
in consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised. Current or deferred tax is charged or credited
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
to equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arise
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on
a net basis.

Dividends
Dividend distribution to the Company’'s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’'s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the directors of the Group.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person, or close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and follow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group's
plant and equipment. Management of the Group will revise
the depreciation charges where useful lives are different
to previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables

The policy for impairment loss on trade receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional impairment loss may be
required.

Provision

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting from
a past event, and such amount can be reasonably estimated,
a corresponding amount of provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. However, no provision is
recognised for costs that need to be incurred to operate in
the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgment is required in determining provision
for taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group currently operates in one operating segment
which is the provision of environmental services. A
single management team reports to the directors of the
Company (being the chief operating decision-maker) who
allocate resources and assess performance based on the
consolidated result of the single business engaged in the
provision of cleaning services for the years ended 30 June
2014 and 2013 comprehensively. Accordingly, the Group
does not present separate segment information.

Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

Customer A ZEA
Customer B =FEB
Customer C =FEC
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2014 2013
—E-F —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
42,001 38,659
27,822 24,461
25,399 23,083

Geographical information

No geographical information is provided as most of the
Group's revenue arises from Hong Kong and the Group's
identifiable assets and liabilities are mainly located in Hong
Kong.
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(a)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. SRMIA
Categories of financial instruments (a) &BIESSE
The Group NEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables B R EWGRIE
- Trade receivables — B FRElRIE 33,470 37,918
— Deposits and other receivables — e N H A EW R IE 2,555 5,622
- Restricted bank deposits — 2R HIRITFR 8,905 8,852
— Fixed deposits — EBfF® - 1,133
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekReZEEY 37,382 28,465
2014 2013
—E-mF —TE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Financial liabilities TRasE
Amortised cost B SRR
— Trade payables — B2 ENRIE 4,289 5,967
- Accruals, deposits received —[EFTER - Bz
and other payables N H b fE T 508 17,085 26,305
- Bank borrowing —iRITIE K 1,278 -
— Obligations under finance leases —BEHEAE 3,563 6,940

92
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. £®MIE(E&)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) £&@MIESE(E)
(continued)
The Company KAFE
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables Bk EWGRE
— Other receivables — H {th R U IR - 4,742
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — FEURH B A RIFUR 20 2,423
— Cash and cash equivalents —RERRESEFEY 12,173 12,089
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost B G AR
- Accruals —EETE R 79 4,703
- Amount due to a subsidiary — FER B A R FRIE 93 =
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6.

94

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(b)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group and the Company operate in Hong
Kong only and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from Renminbi (“RMB") as certain
bank balance of the Group is denominated
in RMB. The Group's and the Company's
management do not expect the net foreign
currency risk from these activities to be
significant and hence, the Group and the
Company do not presently hedge the foreign
exchange risks. The Group and the Company
periodically review liquid assets and liabilities
held in currencies other than HK$ to evaluate its
foreign exchange risk exposure.

6.

ERMI A (&)
(b) HMBEREREEERBE

AEENEBSASEESE %
BMER - mi5ER (27
KRR EMNERR) - FERR

RBETER - AKEHE

BREREEFEETREAR™
BH A TRRIE - B EREA
SEMBRRENEETNEE

fFE&KK -

5 m
(i) SMNEER
AEBRADREES

BRERK - ARASK
BETRITEBRAAR
BatE REAZEA
R & £ & 50 E R
e NREERARAEN
EEEBBRHZEELH
SN R BIFRY A E
Ko B AEBERA
X F) IR B 4 O SME
Rk NEBERARE
S T A AT LAE T A S
MEERENRBEE
NEE - ARHEINER

LA
a0
ZoN

o

2014 2013
—2-mF =F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets BE
RMB AR¥ - 25
Overall net exposure LR b F R - 25

There is no sensitivity analysis as the risk is
insignificant.
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(i) Interest rate risk management
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate bank borrowings. It
is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Lending Rate/Best Lending Rate arising from
the Group’s Hong Kong Dollar denominated
bank borrowing. Since the Group does not
expect any significant movement in these
interest rates, the Group's exposure to interest
rate risk is minimal. The exposures to the
interest rate risk are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced. The Group's credit
risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits, bank
balances and trade and other receivables. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
and counterparties. These evaluations focus on the
counterparty’s financial position, past history of
making payments and take into account information
specific to the counterparty as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the counterparty
operates. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. £®MIE(E&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHEERBEEHEREE
policies (continued) (%)
Market risk (continued) SR ()
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6.

96

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group had certain concentration of credit risk as
71.3% and 62.0% of the total trade receivables of the
Group were due from 5 customers as at 30 June 2014
and 2013 respectively. Management considered the
credit risk is limited since the Group trades only with
customers with an appropriate credit history and good
reputation. The management monitored the financial
background and creditability of those debtors on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the credit risk on liquid
funds including bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.

Liquidity risk

The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity
to finance the daily operation, capital expenditure
and repayment of borrowings. The Group's policy is
to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

Specifically, for secured term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be exercised
at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest period in which
the entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014

6.

4= A

SNeNE eI

N

SWMIA(E)

(b) MBEEABEEBEBEREE
(%)
=EmERE (&)

RZE—NERER T —=F
A=+8 BARAEEEKER
HEFPHRESFERE S E
WRITEEN71.3% % 62.0% * #&
AEEAHEREE LOEPRE
BERK AR AEEEEES
BRECELEIRTEENE
FxX5 HEREBRAEER
BRER - EREIFEEITZS
BEEANTBEE S KA {E1E -
o SRITHER RIRITEH S
RBESHNEERRER - E
BEFH AEERITHRT -

REELEE
AEERERFEEKFNRE
Be UBNBERBKERE.
EXARAXREEERATE
T AEENBRRERER
BB EEHERA
BE TR - REER
RHRRSFHE  NENEHR
BERONRDHESHER -

HEMS  HR=BREXRE
BIGR(HRITE2ERIBITE)
MBEREMERME - 2
BrRERFHEERAEED
RBent  BERATEEE
fif 47 Wi 1B B 35 Y # N 3 B B AR
M - HARITHE R 2 HI B
DMTIZIBEEE BN A RS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 BF 7R 2% M1 23
For the year ended 30 June 2014 &2 —F—[JF A=+ HILF&E

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. BT A (E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEERBREEEEZEREEK
policies (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEELEE (E)

The remaining contractual maturities at the reporting
date of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities

RBEAHAKERITESR
BENBTANIHAERFEM

are as follows:

T

The Group &
Weighted Morethan ~ More than
average Within ~ 1Tyearbut  2years but Total
effective 1 year or less than less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
FHR
-Eh BR-F BERE RenE
nEW  gEER  BORWE  BIREE  BEAL i Ll
BRAZ  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
% TEn Tén TEr Tén TEL TEL
As at 30 June 2014 H-%-ME
REZTH
Trade payables BAR(E - 4,289 - - - 4,289 4,289
Accruals, deposits received FEirER Bl
and other payables RAforfivE - 17,085 - - - 17,085 17,085
Bank borrowing B 60 1,330 - - - 1330 1278
Obiigatons under finance leases BEHEHE 46 28 789 50 - 3,660 3563
25,525 189 50 - 26,364 26,215
Weighted Morg than ~ More than
average Within Tyearbut 2 years but Total
effective 1 year or less than less than Quer  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 2 years b years Syears  cash flows amount
%43
i-43:! U i RenE
ERHE  MEER  EONRE  EOREF DENE i K
% HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tin Thn Tin TR TR TR
Asat 30 June 2013 e Sy e
Trade payables BAEfE - 5,967 - - - 5,967 5,967
Accruals, deposits received EiER  Blize
and other payables R fERzE - 2630 - - - 26,305 26,305
Obligations under finance leases HEREAE 52 483 2218 19 - 7,040 6,940
37,108 218 186 - 39512 39,212
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98

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. £WMIA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEERBEEHEZEREE
policies (continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEESE R (&)
The Company A7
Weighted More than ~ More than
average Within ~ 1Tyearbut  2yearsbut Total
effective Tyearor  lessthan lessthan Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
FER
ETH -Eh BR-F 0 BERE ReliE
EBAE  GEEX  EOWEE  ESWEE EENL 5 R
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK§ ‘000
TAR Té1L TAn - TAR TAR
As at 30 June 2014 H-%-mfF
RE=TH
Accruzls FEiER - 79 - - - 79 79
Amount due to a subsidiary ERHEBATRE - 9 - - - 9 9
Financial quarantse contract HHERAD - 1330 - - - 1,330 -
1,502 - - - 1502 1m
Weighted Morgthan ~ More than
average Within Tyearbut 2 years but Total
effective 1 year or less than less than Qver  undiscounted Carrying
nterestrate  on demand 2 years hyears Dyears  cash flows amount
FER
WE) -Ef B BERE Hehe
ERAE GEER EONEE  EONEE RENL % BT
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000
Tt TEL i TEL T St
As 4t 30 June 2013 2
~AZTH
Accruals EitER - 4,703 - - - 4703 4709

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contract is the maximum amount the Company could
be forced to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee (Note 24).
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is more likely
than not that such an amount will not be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and trade
in active markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid and ask prices respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair value.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair values of financial
instruments based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

No analysis is disclosed since the Group has no
financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value as at 30 June 2014
and 2013.

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 for the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
of the Group and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maximise the returns to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of debts,
which include borrowings from banks and obligations
under finance leases, and equity attributable to owners
of the Group, comprising issued share capital, share
premium, other reserve, contribution surplus and retained
earnings. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital to monitor its
capital structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. This ratio is
expressed by as a percentage of total borrowings over the
total equity. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
during the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.
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7.

N

EXmmER
AEEETEAEENTEZEARARR
BARBEBESBEELENREN BB
4R PR R\ i 7 T 7 E m K AR 75 TE (B A %
UNEEBERAESRE  HERAKE
BRmRE R L BEMBEERSEAS
KAz

AEEBEGTERENREEEEARE
BABAE R - AR R D &R (76
HERSEZKE) BRIFERK R T
KBS MEFRBREFE - LRE
REBRE(CREENGERE -

ZANYNCT RSB CINUNY = NCIL R N il
TEINE B AR TEPTARIR

AEBEHENGEETZREREMNX -
BRRTEREBEREAE ARk
AEBEHEAARMGED  EREED
BATROR - BRORE - A - &
ABBREREBN - AEEEREN
AR BEEEAREENRRARE
ERBHEREEERHEENER - %
RAERARGRAERBENT
DUHFE -RBE-_FT-—MOFR_-F
—=FRNA=THLFE AEEH
ERRBGERTE o

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2014 and 2013 were as follows: R-ZE—NNER_E—=FA=+
ANEEBGBLENAT
2014 2013
—EF-OF T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Total borrowings (Note (i) fak4azs (MIsE) 4,841 6,940
Total equity (Note (i) e BEE (Fiaki) 64,467 53,373
Gearing ratio BEEAMFBLEE 7.5% 13.0%
Notes: B EE -

(i) Total borrowings include bank borrowing and obligations under
finance leases are detailed in Notes 24 and 25 respectively.

(ii) Total equity includes all share capital and reserves at the end of the
reporting period.
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8.

REVENUE 8. =
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Environmental services income IRIE AR UA 193,098 194,549
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the Wz (BN A S B/ Z X5 ) IBFRNRE
value of services rendered during the year. MR HIEE -
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. Ha g A K& k=
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Other income: HlA :
Interest income FEHA 78 34
Sundry income I A 675 20
Reversal of provision for Ol = HARR 7% & st
long service payment 1,020 761
Reversal of provision for severance BEEIE A B B
payment -
Reversal of provision for untaken paid leave #[EIRIZENE # BRI EE -
Reversal of provision for staff allowances  #[E] 8 T {8 Bh [ fEAT B4
and bonus 2,045 -
Reversal of provision for claims B O RERE 359 1
Reversal of provision on impairment B Bl Rz BR R (E B
for bad and doubtful debts 34
5,363 850
Other gains: Hith gz ¢
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BERKEEDN
plant and equipment e 40
Exchange gain, net PE 5 Wz 55 E 1
41
5,574 891

guraRAE « 52014 107
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10.

11.

102

FINANCE COSTS 10. RERA
2014 2013
—E2—lmF —TE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Interests on: DT REBEBHFE
Bank borrowings wholly repayable HARAFARBHEED
within five years SRITIERX 76 135
Obligations under finance leases e S AR 280 442
356 577
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BRBANER
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: BB AT m A E bk T 51 %18 ¢
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN & 400 400
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BEREETE
and equipment
Owned by the Group AEBER 1,862 1,127
Held under finance lease obligations CREEEXTBETMFAR 3,300 3,399
Cost of consumable goods SEAESRAK AN 2,652 2,325
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: & T A (BIEEEEHE) ¢
Salaries and wages FekIE& 93,518 99,300
Long service payment EHIR% 2 985 1,685
Allowances and others AL HAth 649 501
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB FUR RETEI A 3R
retirement plans 3,784 4,039
98,936 105,525
Minimum lease payments under KEAEE T REHEERIE
operating leases 2,289 1,196

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

NN e EiIES

12. PSR

The income tax expenses for the years ended 30 June
2014 and 2013 represent Hong Kong Profits Tax which is
calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit of the

BHE - Z-—NFEN_ZT—=F,5A
ZTHLESEENMEHAXEES
FMER  HiEAEE G ERB G T

Group. 16.5% 5T &
The charge comprises: T B
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAEIT
Current tax: RIHARGIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB NS 2,950 2,167
Deferred tax: RERIE
Current year charge (Note 26) AEEZE (MiE26) 91 372
Income tax expenses FriSHif > 3,041 2,539
The income tax expenses for the years ended 30 June 2014 HE_Z—NEER=_FT—=FA

and 2013 can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

“tTRLEFENMEHANERAR
a5 N E i 2 T W as 3% PR BR A A& A

comprehensive income as follows: HIEEREAT
2014 2013
—E—mEF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before taxation B B Bl Al 16,135 5,638
Tax at the applicable income tax rate RERAMSEHTE16.5%
of 16.5% (2013:16.5%) ZE—=%:16.5%)
SHEOHRE 2,662 930
Tax effect of: T RIERNREE
Income not taxable for tax purpose BARTUA (162) (578)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose DEEik 5 450 1,694
Recognised temporary differences ERERE R =5 91 372
Tax loss not recognised RIERTH I EE - 121
Income tax expenses FrS % 52 3,041 2,539

FHHLAC AR A F) » 3R 2014
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13.

14.

104

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend of HK 2 cents per share for the year ended
30 June 2013, amounted to HK$2,000,000, was declared by
the Board and paid to the Company’s shareholders during
the year ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the Company
do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2014.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.

14.

N

R E
RBE-_Z—NFNA=ZTHLEE

EBEEEERBEE_T—=F,A
= +tHIEFERRBREEFR 2B
4 32,000,000 7T + WEIR FARQ
AIRE - ARNBEETEEHEEC
T—MFEANA=+T B IEFEIRMSEMR
B o

FRAF
SHEARARER ARG SRESAF

B A NP SR R AR

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Earnings for the year attributable to KRB ANEGEERT
the owners of the Company 13,094 3,099
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
‘000 ‘000
T T i
(restated)
(&ZE7))
Weighted average number of shares for FTE SR EARZ T FTE A
the purpose of the basic earnings e IRE (MEE)
per share (Note) 1,000,000 759,560
Diluted earnings per share BRE#ESER

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 and therefore
the diluted earnings per share amounts are the same as the
basic earnings per share for both years.

Note:

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 is based on the weighted average number
of approximately 1,000,000,000 and 759,560,000 ordinary shares of the
Company in issue during the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 respectively.
On 23 December 2013, the Company conducted a 1-for-10 share subdivision.
Each issued and unissued ordinary share of the Company of HK$0.01 each
was subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each (Note 27). The
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculation during the year ended 30 June 2013 was
adjusted retrospectively.
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AEARZFFER -

GEE

BE_ZT-—NER-_ZT—=FA=THLHF
EHNERERARBEERANDBEEE-T—N
ER_FE—=ZFNA=tBELEEAQFDE
17 B AR B9 g 15 805 5114V 1,000,000,000 A%
759,660,000 k5t E - R=ZFT—=F+=A
Z+=H ' AREETRFARTROKRG T
4 o RARE—REE0.01 BT 2B BITRAE
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15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 15. EEMeFE A REHFAL
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Directors’ emoluments EES
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven REBEE - ZT—NERKR -—ZT—=F58
directors during the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 =t+HIEE BENsEN+EES
were as follows: NGO A
Salaries and Contributions to
other emoluments retirement benefits
Director's fees and benefits Discretionary bonus scheme Total emoluments
#o- AfMeR
Ezhs REA 42 BRI HNHER HedE

01 018 014 N3 04 08 04 013 04 01
“R-BE ZF-F CR-RE 25 oF CR-DF ZF-oF CR-PE Z5-oF CR-PF 2% 0F
HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS'000  HKS000 HKS000  HKSO00 HKS'000  HKS'000
tén  TEr TRn TEr TRr TEr TR TEr TR AR

Chairman and Executive Director ~ TEFHES

Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan BRERE
{ Mr. Fan’) (Note) (e 1) (st - 450 1560 310 50 - 19 - 162 760
- 450 1,560 310 50 - 19 - 1,629 760
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel B - - 410 L1y 62 50 15 15 547 42
Ms. Hung Sui Hing, Lilian Wriat - - 510 462 43 41 15 15 568 518
- - 980 809 105 91 30 30 1,115 930
Non-executive Director FHES
Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria BRERT
("Ms. Fan’) ([Bat]) 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTES
Mr. Ho King Man, Kenneth ARNEE 120 9 - = - = - = 120 9
Mr. Tong Kin Ping, Patrick il 120 9 - - - - - - 120 9
Mr. Yu Tat Kong, Petrus REHRE 120 9 - - - - - - 120 9
360 21 - - - - - - 360 21
480 597 2,540 1119 155 91 49 30 3,224 1837
Note:  Mr. Fan is also the Managing Director of the Group. The function of fizE: EBEENMALAEERETALE -S54
the Managing Director is the same as the Chief Executive Officer. £EIB B RE ER T TR AR B MY BR BE AR R
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15.

106

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 15.
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

Key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
directors’ remuneration, was as follows:

EEMeREBRESHFAL
(%)

FEEBAB
TEEBAEME(REESEHE) M
T

2014 2013
—E—-MF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREMmET 3,360 2,433
Discretionary bonus BB TEAT 221 142
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme ER1E 5t 2 &9 91 67
3,672 2,642
Five highest paid individuals EEBREHAT

The five highest paid individuals include 3 directors (2013:
3 directors) of the Company during the year ended 30 June
2014. The remuneration paid to the remaining 2 individuals
(2013: 2 individuals) during the year ended 30 June 2014 was
as follows:

RBE_ZFT-—NFEA=THLF
B EEABREHFALEBEIBARRE
F(ZE—=F:38EF) - NBE_
T-MERA=THIEFE  MHT2
FEMERANE(ZE—Z=F:2%5
MEBAB) XNEOFHMIMT

2014 2013

—E-mF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMEEMAEA 854 786
Discretionary bonus BB IEAT 72 45
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme ER1EFI5H 2189 42 32
968 863

The number of these non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as
follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/8 7T

FHNFUATHENZFIFES - &
BIALTAZBET :

2014 2013
—EF-OF —zF=
2 2

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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15.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 15.

PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

Senior management

The emoluments of the senior management of the Company
are within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007% 7T

EEMEeERITEBEFAL
(%)

ERERE
ARAREREBBOFHN TIATEH

o
=

Number of employees

BEAR
2014 2013
—F-lF —F=F
1 3

For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the directors, key management
personnel or any of the five highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors, key
management personnel and the five highest paid employees
had waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

REBEE-_ZT—NER_ZT—=ZFA
ZTHELEFE AEETEMNES -
FEEBEAESAE RS HEERT
M—BI M EEME  EEMALE
B 3k o0 A 7K &£ E B ) 5% B) Sk Bk B
B REBEE_Z-—NER_ZT—=

ANAZTHLEFE BEEE X2
BEABNAERSHEEWMENKR
EMEEAEE -
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16.

108

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE
The Group NEEF
Equipment
Furniture and Motor
and fixtures  machinery vehicles Total
RAREE FRERHEE AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THET THET
Cost: B
As at 1 July 2012 WZZE——F+HF—H 2,216 10,370 13,337 25,923
Additions INE 13 1,967 4,491 6,471
Disposals & - - (165) (165)
As at 30 June 2013 RZE—=F~A=1TAHK
and 1 July 2013 —T—=FtA—H 2,229 12,337 17,663 32,229
Additions INE 300 703 2,486 3,489
Disposals HE - (4) (1,018) (1,022)
As at 30 June 2014 R-B-NFEXA=1H 2,529 13,036 19,131 34,696
Accumulated depreciation: Z:FHFE :
As at 1 July 2012 RZZE——F+tHF—H 2,175 9,103 3,510 14,788
Charge for the year FELH 12 617 3,897 4,526
Written off on disposals A 5 e 9 5 - - (165) (165)
As at 30 June 2013 RZZE-—=FA=1+HkK
and 1 July 2013 “E—=FtA—H 2,187 9,720 7,242 19,149
Charge for the year FEXH 47 635 4,480 5,162
Written off on disposals A 5 B 5 - (3) (697) (700)
As at 30 June 2014 R-ZE-—NFEXA=1H 2,234 10,352 11,025 23,611
Carrying amount: HRMEE
As at 30 June 2014 R-ZE-NFEXA=1H 295 2,684 8,106 11,085
As at 30 June 2013 RZZE—=F,A=+H 42 2,617 10,421 13,080

As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of the Group's
motor vehicles included amount of approximately
HK$6,677,000 (2013: HK$9,119,000) in respect of assets

held under finance leases.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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17.

—E-WENA=THILFE

A5 R 2 P 7

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMIEARNER
The Company Vi /N |
2014 2013
—E—MF —ET—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - BRAE - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS T A R FIR 20 2,423
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTHTE A RIFkIE 93 =
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, FEU(FEAT) Y BB A B 5K IE B & K
interest-free and recoverable/(repayable) on demand. TR ERAIREREKRE(E
B) -
As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, details of the Company's R-ZE—NNER-_ZE—=F~A=1+
subsidiaries are as follows: B AQRIMBARIGFREHT :
Percentage of equity
Name of Place and date of Issued/paid interest attributable Principal
Subsidiary incorporation up capital to the Company activities
BB/ RAREMERE
WEARER MR R B S BHRE EREDN TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 5E3
% %
Silver Marker Limited The BVI, 21 May 2012 US$1.00 100 - Investment holding
("Silver Maker") ERERRES 1.00%7T REARR
Silver Market Limited “ET-—FRA-1+-H
(ISilver Market )
Bransfield Assets Limited The BVI, 2 January 2009 HK$22,400,023 - 100 Investment holding
("Bransfield")
Bransfield Assets Limited ABABRRES 22,400,023 RAER
(IBransfield]) “ZFTAF-AZA
PPS Reality Deco Hong Kong, 24 February 2014 HK$1 - 100 Inactive
Company Limited
EBMERILIE
ARAH &% —T-ME-A-+HEA 1871 - 100 gEER
Pollution & Protection Hong Kong, 21 January 1986 HK$18,557,800 - 100 Provision of
Services Limited environmental
services
ERREREERLR &% —nA\R"E-A=t-R 18,557,800 7T RERERT
PPC Environmental Limited Hong Kong, 2 June 1978 HK$1,442,200 - 100 Provision of
environmental
services
FERZAmBRAR B —Nt\E1AZH 1,442,200 % 7T ARG RS

EHHLRC AR A F) » iR 2014
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18.

19.

110

N

INVENTORIES 18. FE&
The Group NEEF
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consumable goods SHAE M 70 56
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZEIEHE
The Group 23 oL
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F=F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Trade receivables B Z e EIA 33,470 37,918

Generally no credit period is granted to the Group's
customers. Environmental services fee are due upon the
presentation of the invoices. The following is an ageing
analysis of trade receivables presented based on the invoice
date:

AEE-—RIEHETEFPEES - R
BRGEENIREFZNEE - REE
HEAZFINE 5 R UGRIARER 5T 1
T :

2014 2013

—E-MmF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
0-30 days 0%30H 29,155 23,807
31-60 days 31%260H 1,893 7,463
61-90 days 61290H 1,465 4,787
Over 90 days @m0 H 957 1,861
33,470 37,918

The Group's policy for impairment loss on trade receivables
is based on an evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of the receivables which requires the use of judgment and
estimates. Provisions are applied to the receivables when
there are events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The management closely
reviews the trade receivable balances and any overdue
balances on an ongoing basis and assessments are made by
management on the collectability of overdue balances. As at
30 June 2014 and 2013, no allowances for bad and doubtful
debts in respect of the trade receivables had been made.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) EZEWIE(E)
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful RIBREBEST
debts
2014 2013
—E-0mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Balance at beginning of the year FH AR - 34
Reversal of provision on impairment RO RZRRERE
for bad and doubtful debts - (34)
Balance at end of the year FREH - -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. The management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there have not been a significant change in credit
risk and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over those balances.

The amount of trade receivables that are past due but not
impaired is the same as above ageing analysis of trade
receivables.

The reversal of provision on impairment for bad and doubtful
debts was due to impaired trade receivables which had been
settled by certain customers during the year ended 30 June
2013.

B 781 HA 1B 3 R OB (B &Y B U TR IR S K %
FHEARBERFRFRXFEENE L
EF-BEHREMRRE AaREERRLE
BEEAEE  HERDBER DA B
Yelm - BB 7B ok B A R 1 HORU(E 1
e ARBEYEHZFERTAEMN
il

EAMEIRBENEZBKRFKIAS
B FXE 5 KA Rk o TR
A -

BRORZERERBIARETEP

REBE_T—=F "A=1THLFE
ENEREEZEKFR
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20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. %&£ - ANRERHEMEKRIK

RECEIVABLES I
The Group TEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Deposits (Note) =e (FisE) 2,405 845
Prepayments TERTFRIB 408 852
Other receivables o fE W SR IE 150 4,777
2,963 6,474
The Company ENANS
2014 2013
—EF-mF T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT
Prepayments TERTFIB 184 550
Other receivables o fE W SR IE - 4,742
184 5,292
Note: B o -
The Group has tendered for certain environmental services contracts and R-Z—NENA=+H AEEEHEETR
deposited sums of approximately HK$1,600,000 (2013: HK$ Nil) as a tender RIRIEER » WS4 1,600,000 (=F
deposit as at 30 June 2014. The tender deposit is interest-free and recoverable —=F: EBT)EARERS - RIZERES TG
at the end of the tender. B BRBZAREEATUR[E o
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21.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

4= A

NN ETEiIES

Al

21. RERBITEE

The Group rEE
2014 2013
—E-F —E =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEY
(Notes (a) and (b)) (M43 (@) B (b)) 37,382 28,465
Fixed deposits (Note (b)) TEHBTF 3k (B3 (b)) - 1,133
Restricted bank deposits Z RS ERITER
(Notes (b) and (c)) (M43 (b) 2 (c)) 8,905 8,852
46,287 38,450

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$ Nil (2013: HK$25,000) as at 30 June
2014 which is not freely convertible currency and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed

As at 30 June 2014, the effective interest rates per annum on bank
deposits, with maturities of less than three months and over three
months but less than twelve months were approximately 0.35%

(a)

by the PRC government.
(b)

(2013: 0.36%) and 0.37% (2013: 0.41%) respectively.
(c)

The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks as security
for due performance under several environmental service contracts.
Included in restricted bank deposits, amount of approximately
HK$2,395,000 (2013: HK$6,842,000) related to environmental
service contracts with expiry date over one year after the end of the
reporting period and amount of approximately HK$6,510,000 (2013:
HK$2,010,000) with expiry date under one year after the end of the
reporting period.

(b)

R=F—mEAAS+AE  AREAA
REFENRERRSEENOATE
ST(=F—=4 : 25,000/87T) @ AR
ATHAmLRES TARKASE
o 17 5 o LA 4 4 B 3 R
IR -

R-ZT—mEA=1+A " BHPENT
TR=EAMEBITERREGE A=
AAEERR+-—EANRITERD
BERFHESRAR035% (ZFT—=
£ :0.36%) R037% (=T — =% :
0.41%) °

ZRHEBITFERERBOIHENRS
ERZERBTETERERBEHNNE
R et AR HIBITERNKEM
= EH#2,3950008 (=T —=
16,842,000/ 7T ) kR & HI A
HEAR - FRIENRERBEEL
% #96,510,0008 T( =T — = & :
2,010,000 7T) Bl R R& SR A& E
BE—FRTHE -
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 21. BERBITESR(E)
The Company Vi /N |
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 12,173 12,089
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. ESEMNIE
The Group AEHE
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables = AN 4,289 5,967

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables as at 30
June 2014 and 2013:

RZE—UER_E—Z=ZFA=+
B BESEMFIERERDTIOT ¢

2014 2013

—E-ImF —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

0-30 days 0%230H 3,972 5,462
31-60 days 31260H 317 208
61-90 days 61290H - 73
Over 90 days @90 - 224
4,289 5,967

The credit period on purchases of certain goods and services
ranged from due on presentation of invoice to 60 days.
Included in the Group's trade payables as at 30 June 2014
was an amount due to Niko Cleaning Services Limited (“Niko
Cleaning”), a company owned by Mr. Fan, of approximately
HK$112,000 (2013: HK$Nil).
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23.

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 23.

EtER CREZESRHEME

PAYABLES FRE
The Group TEE
2014 2013
—E—MF —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Accruals (Note) FEStE A (M) 16,275 25,465
Deposits received Blize 667 663
Other payables B FE A SR IE 143 177
17,085 26,305
The Company Vi /N |
2014 2013
—EF-OF —FT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THET
Accruals EstER 79 4,703
Note: B EE -

As at 30 June 2014, included in the Group's accruals of approximately
HK$6,864,000 (2013: HK$9,832,000), HK$4,276,000 (2013: HK$3,321,000),
HK$1,878,000 (2013: HK$1,471,000), HK$491,000 (2013: HK$602,000) and
HK$ Nil (2013: HK$4,545,000) were accrued salaries, provision for long service

payment, provision for untaken paid leave, provision for claims and accrual of

listing fee respectively.

RZT—WERNA=1+A AEERAERPY
6,864,000/87C( =% —=4F : 9,832,000/&7T)
4,276,000 7T (= ZF—=4 : 3,321,000/87)
1,878,000 ;L (=T — =4 : 1,471,000/ 7T )
491,000t (=& — =4 : 602,000/ L) K Z
BIL(ZZT— =4 : 4,645,00087L) DB AE &
AE S RERB X HEE - RIRIAFHRGRE
& REBERETER-
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24.

116

R BRI

BANK BORROWING 24, RBITER
The Group AEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —TE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Bank loan: IRITE
Secured (Notes (a), (b) and (c)) EEM (FzE(a) ~ (b)R(c) 1,278 =
Secured term loan from bank that repayable ZBER A NHAREAEER A K
within the period of: RIRTTERE R
— less than 1 year ——FA 1,015 -
— more than 1 year but within 2 years ——FERERFR 263 -
Secured term loan B EEER 1,278 -
Less: Amount classified as current liability & : D ARE A G/ E
— Secured term loan containing a —HARERKEEKK
repayment on demand clause HEEFERER (1,278) =
Amount classified as non-current liability N RIERE A B KIE - -
Notes: PR EE -
(a) The bank term loan with outstanding balance of approximately (a) R-E—MESA=1TH " REELEH

HK$1,278,000 (2013: HK$ Nil) as at 30 June 2014 was secured by
corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

(b) The loan with a financial institution amounted to approximately (b)
HK$1,278,000 (2013: HK$ Nil) as at 30 June 2014 carried interest
at 1.0% per annum over the Best Lending Rate, and stable at 6.0%
during the year ended 30 June 2014.

(c) For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Group had no (b)
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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#91,278,000 8 T(Z T — =% : TF
TT) BISRTTTE B E KA X R AR E A8 -

R-ZB—EXA=1H" E—HEa
HENEREEELN 1,278,000 L (==
—=F: BEL)RBE-F-NEXA
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25.

4= A

NN eI

-
.,

Al

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 25. BEHESEAE
The Group TEE
Leasing arrangements HEZH
The Group leased certain of its motor vehicles under finance AEEREREHEREST)AHE -
leases.
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BRIEAERE BEEEFREERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF —_T-=F =—E-0OF T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT FHExT T
Amounts payable under RIZREHE R
finance leases: KRR -
Within one year —FA 2,821 4,836 2,738 4,589
In the second to fifth year, F_BERF
inclusive (RREEEMSF) 839 2,404 825 2,351
3,660 7,240 3,563 6,940
Less: Future finance charges B BEREER (97) (300) - =
Present value of finance REMERE
leases 3,563 6,940 3,563 6,940
Less: Amount due for B —FREEE
settlement within ErFRIE
one year (2,738) (4,589)
Amount due for settlement —F R HEER
after one year A 825 2,351

EHERR AR AR « £ 2014 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4:& B 5 < M =
For the year ended 30 June 2014 # & = F—HFNA =+ HIFFZ

26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. EZEBIIE
The Group NEE
The components of deferred tax balances recognised in REEN EFFEREGE P HARTRE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the 8 IE AL T T8 A #5040 K H O B an
movements thereon during the current and prior years are as T
follows:
Accelerated tax
depreciation
IR IE T E
HK$'000
T
At 1 July 2012 R-_ZE——F+HF—H 652
Charged to profit or loss (Note 12) RIBR R IR (F5E12) 372
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 RZZE—Z=FA=1+AK 1,024
—E—=FtH—H
Charged to profit or loss (Note 12) RIBERFIOBR (FIsE12) 91
At 30 June 2014 RZZB—MFERA=1+H 1,115
As at 30 June 2014, the Group had approximately R-ZZE—WENA=Z+H  AEEH
HK$151,000 (2013: HK$151,000) accumulated tax losses A #151,000 Bo( —ZF—=
not recognised as deferred tax asset. No deferred tax asset 151,000 %7t ) B9 R 51 i T8 E5 18 I R 7R
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the REELEHIBEE - AR REETER R
unpredictability of future profit streams. FomFmeE - I EBE B EE B ER
BEETRIAEE ©
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT AR H®E g iRERIE
the financial reporting purposes. ERDAT ©
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHTT
Deferred tax liability EERIBEE 1,127 1,036
Deferred tax asset RERIBE B (12) (12)
1,115 1,024
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27.

—E-WENA=THILFE

A5 R 2 P 7

SHARE CAPITAL 27. B&X
The Company Vi /N |
The movements of share capital of the Company are as ARRARREAEB) 0T -
follows:
Number Nominal
Notes of shares value
B &E R EE HE
HK$
BT
Authorised: ERE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREBE0.01HBIL 2 LB
As at 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013 and RZZE——F+A—H-
1 July 2013 —E-=%A=1H
;MZZE—=FtHF—H (a) 10,000,000,000 100,000,000
Share subdivision B A ¥v 4R (f) 90,000,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FHEE0.001E T2 B
As at 30 June 2014 R-E—NFA=1H 100,000,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E T LB
As at 1 July 2012 RZZE—Z—F+H—H (a &b 1 -
Issue of shares upon Reorganisation SR EITRG (c) 99 1
Capitalisation issue BEAR{LEET (d) 74,999,900 749,999
Issue of shares pursuant to ETRRIRR S
the Placing upon listing TR G (e) 25,000,000 250,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01E L2 LB
As at 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 RZZE—=F A=+HK
—T—=FtH—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Share subdivision A0 ¥v 4R (f) 900,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each BREE.001ETZEER
As at 30 June 2014 R-ZZE—NEXA=1H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000

EHHLRC AR A F) » iR 2014
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27.

120

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(e)

As at 1 July 2012, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. 1 share of the Company was issued and held by Mr. Fan at par
value.

On 28 May 2013, Mr. Fan transferred 1 share to Viva Future at par
value.

On 28 May 2013, the Company allotted and issued 74 and 25
shares to Viva Future and Renowned Ventures Limited (“Renowned
Ventures”) respectively credited as fully paid at the direction of Mr.
Fan and Ms. Fan for their transfer of the entire issued capital of
Bransfield to Silver Marker.

On 14 June 2013, 74,999,900 ordinary shares of the Company were
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par value of HK$0.01
to Viva Future and Renowned Ventures, by way of capitalisation
of HK$749,999 from the share premium account. Such allotment
and capitalisation were conditional on the share premium account
being credited as a result of the new shares issued upon listing
of the Company’'s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“Capitalisation Issue”).

Upon listing on 17 June 2013, 25,000,000 ordinary shares (at par value
of HK$0.01 each) of the Company were allotted and issued by way of
placing (the “Placing”) at HK$1.2 per placing share.

On 23 December 2013, the Company conducted a 1-for-10 share
subdivision. Each issued and unissued ordinary share of the Company
of HK$0.01 each was subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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A (%)

BaE

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

R—ZZE—=—FtA—H' X227
YA E % 7N /100,000,000 K 4 B
10,000,000,000 f% * &R 0.01 BT ° &<
A7) — R B BT BE e A IREE
A -

RZE—=FA-+/\B Bt
E{E# & 1 IRAR (D T Viva Future °

RZZE—=FRA=+/\A ' AREE
BERERBLXTHETRT S AIE 2 R
177488 R 25 IR ABRZIVESR R B 0 T Viva
Future X Renowned Ventures Limited
([Renowned Ventures]) © LA & &
Bransfield #) & #p B # 1T IR 24X F Silver
Marker

RZE—=F"A+tHmA BAARK
% B B & A& {£749,999%8 -
74,999,900 f& A BR 3 {ESB B B AR A Al
LIBARIZEE 0.01 BT B AL R EBEIT T
Viva Future 2Renowned Ventures ° #%
Ef s RERNEAFEAR ARG RER
FrAI MR TR BT H AR D M A BRRR 5
wER(TEARMEEIT]) » HAEE -

RZF—=F A+tALWE  &AQ
AEARE ([REDIESRESERN1.2
785 7T Bt % & % 725,000,000 f% & 8 B
(SKREEO0.01ET) °

RZZE—=F+=-A=+=8 " &AQH
EIT—RBRTRFA - XA RSREE
0.01 BTz B BT RAREIT L MR
AEREE0.001 Btz +IRE B -
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28.

RESERVES 28. f#f&
The Company KN F]
Share Accumulated Total
premium losses equity
% 105 B 25t EE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT T
As at 1 July 2012 R-_ZB——F+A—H - - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREE N & HEB4A%5
for the year = (10,259) (10,259)
Effect of Capitalisation Issue BEREITHRE (750) - (750)
Issue of shares upon listing R MRS 29,750 = 29,750
Transaction costs attributable to
issue of shares BTN AR R SR AN (4,640) - (4,640)
As at 30 June 2013 and RZE—=FA=1+H
1 July 2013 r—Z—=%+H—H 24,360 (10,259) 14,101
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREE N & HEEB4A%5
for the year - (896) (896)
Dividend paid (Note 13) EARE (FisE13) (2,000) - (2,000)
As at 30 June 2014 R=B—NFA<A=1H 22,360 (11,155) 11,205

The share premium account of the Company represents
share issued at a premium.

Under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to its shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 30 June 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounting to approximately
HK$11,205,000 (2013: HK$14,101,000) and calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and the memorandum or articles of
association of the Company.

AR A B An i (B RR FE R B BT R

Bt

BRERSHSEME22BREDE - K
RAM R BRI ED KT AR A
PR EBERZEDRBEZHR
ARARWBREEEAEXZKBRESD
M B ERERS

R-ZEBE—mWMEXA=1+8 " BEHFS
BEROFE2FERaERA A MH
BERREKMABNGE - AQaE A H
DR T RRAFEELA11,205,00078
TT(ZFE—=%F : 14,101,000/ 7T) °
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29.

122

—E-WENA=THILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Defined contribution plan

The Group offers two retirement schemes which together
cover all permanent staff.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme"”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on
the rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the
basic salary of the relevant employee subject to a specific
ceiling of HK$1,500 (HK$1,250 prior to 1 June 2014).

Another scheme is defined contribution in nature and
established under trust and is registered under the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the schemes are held independently of the Group's
assets in separate trustee administered funds.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
approximately HK$3,784,000 (2013: HK$4,039,000) for the
year ended 30 June 2014 represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.
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30.

31.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. KREHEARE
The Group as lessee AEBEERERAA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had REREBHLEEH » XEEBERA]
commitments for future minimum lease payments under A EHEB THNEEARERER
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: TEAER|BRIE R ¢
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THT
Within one year —FA 1,714 2,004
Within two to five years —ZRENRA - 1,714
1,714 3,718
Operating lease payments represent rental payable for the KEHRERBERASENAME - &
Group's office premise, warehouse and director’s quarter. BEREFEENEMNES - HEREE
Leases are negotiated for terms of two years and monthly AWE  mBAESRBEHARET
rental is fixed throughout the lease period. o
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. BERESTE

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of attract, retain
and reward the eligible persons and to provide the eligible
persons an incentive or reward for their contribution to the
Group and by enabling such persons’ contribution to further
advance the interests of the Group. The Share Option
Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the
date of adoption, after which period no further options will
be offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects with respect to options granted during the life of the
Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include
directors, consultants or advisers and any other person who
has contributed to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the board of directors and shall be at least
the highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (ii)
the average of the closing prices per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal
value of the share.

ARBEGRERYL —RBERES S
(TEERERTEl])  §HERS - BER
RBMAaBEBRALTRAGHAREEL
BERNEERALTRHERHEEIN
REZZZEANTWERE - TRARN
SENME - BREAEIN _FT—=
FRAZTNBHEMA  LHFABH
Bt +FRER HEABTHRERER
He b ERE  EiEREEA
MEIAR KO BREN S - BRI
SR EMABE M MRS T2
A R HE R

BEREFINAEBRALIERES
7R AR A SR B B S R 5% B 4F B RR
METMEMAL((EEBALI]) -

BRENRBE I HEFSETNE
B AMBABSATEEFNESE
(MR R R BEM S HRE
R E BT E ¢ (i) BRI REER
EREAMAEEXBEMRAEA
HEXRAMBHESIFHRHE 2 (iii)
AP EE °
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31.

124

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person concerned for such period as determined by the
board of directors, being a date not later than ten business
days after the offer date by which the Eligible Person must
accept the offer or be deemed to have declined it, provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the
tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme.

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the offer shall be a nominal amount to be
determined by the board of directors.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other Share Option Schemes shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.
The Company may grant options to specified participant(s)
beyond the 10% limit provided that the options granted
in excess of such limit are specifically approved by the
shareholders in general meeting and the participants are
specifically identified by the Company before such approval
is sought. In seeking such approval, a circular must be
sent to the shareholders containing the required details in
accordance with Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in issue shall not exceed 30% (or
such higher percentage as may be allowed under the GEM
Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.
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31.

32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including both exercised and outstanding options under the
Share Option Scheme) in any twelve-month period must
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Where any further grant of options to an Eligible Person
would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such
Eligible Person and his associates abstaining from voting.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company has not granted any share option.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Additions to property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$1,593,000 (2013: HK$4,226,000) for the year ended 30
June 2014 were financed by finance leases.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June 2014 and
2013 were as follows:

31.

32.

33.

BREstE (F)

HEABMALREGD+ —EABHER
BT {58 HL S AR 1 (RSB R A =t )
T AT R i R AT 4 B A HE ) T 2 3
TREBITORN B - FEBBA
RABBETRAN 1% - fgE—FAE
AERALETRBESBLZRE
BIBERRAS ERBRRIE - @
ERAERATRABEALARE

ogE
X 715

5 RN T AR S B A SR - A A TN 4R
155 o AT BB S

FEHFRERSH
REE-_Z—NFA=THLFE
W - BEKFZHEAELA1,593,000
BIT(ZE—=4F : 4,226,000/ 7T)
HEERE BN -

BARERE
R-B-—NEER-_F—=FXA=+
A E\RNER S SRR E L BENR
BEEARAEWT :

Capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements

2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
ERTAB YRR ERE B 15 3R
LRBARKEYE - &
B REHENEARRS
- 38
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34.

35.

126

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had entered the following material
transactions with related parties during the years ended 30
June 2014 and 2013.

a)

Compensation paid to key management personnel of
the Group are disclosed in Note 15.

As at 30 June 2013, personal guarantees of
approximately HK$6,940,000 were provided by Mr.
Fan to the Group in respect of motor vehicle finance
leases. All such personal guarantees had been
released during the year ended 30 June 2014.

The Group novated/assigned certain services contract
to Niko Cleaning, which constitutes transfer of
services and obligations between the Group and Niko
Cleaning during the years ended 30 June 2014 and
2013. During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
had also subcontracted certain environmental contract
to Niko Cleaning at subcontracting fee charges of
approximately HK$448,000 (2013: HK$ Nil).

LITIGATION

During the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigation concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, all potential
liabilities are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements and covered by insurance protection.
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36.

37.

38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company was informed by Viva Future, that on 25
July 2014, Viva Future entered into transfer documents for
the disposal of in aggregate of 280,000,000 shares (the
“Shares”) in the capital of the Company held by it to five
investors, namely Xin Hong, Zhao Han, Lai Junning, Fu
Wenhui and Lin Shangquan (collectively the “Investors”)
as to 20,000,000, 130,000,000, 45,000,000, 45,000,000
and 40,000,000 Shares at HK$16,400,000, HK$87,100,000,
HK$34,650,000, HK$32,400,000 and HK$32,800,000
respectively. To the best knowledge, information and
belief of the directors, the Investors are independent
third parties not connected with the Company and its
connected persons (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) (such disposals shall be collectively referred to as the
“Disposals”). Shares disposed via the Disposals represent
in aggregate approximately 28% of the total issued share
capital of the Company (the “Share Capital”). Following
the Disposals, the total interests of Mr. Fan in the Shares
including family and other interests within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are 420,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 42% of the Share Capital, of
which 225,000,000 Shares, representing approximately
22.5% of the Share Capital, had been charged as security
(the “Charged Shares”) in favour of Mr. Fong Shing Kwong,
Michael (“Mr. Fong”) for a facility granted to Viva Future.

On 4 August 2014, the Company received a notice from Mr.
Fan that the Charged Shares have been released by Mr. Fong
and the relevant registration procedures for the release of
charge of the relevant Charged Shares have been completed.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant events
after the end of the reporting period.

COMPARATIVES
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
September 2014.
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Financial Summary 81754 2

For the year ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—F-mF —T=%F —T=F —
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET T T
Results 4
Revenue Iz 193,098 194,549 163,598 167,822
Profit for the year KRBHEE A
attributable to owners eI Em F
of the Company 13,094 3,099 16,154 18,833
Dividends paid BEATRR B 2,000 = 14,216 16,000
As at 30 June
RAB=1+8
2014 2013 2012 2011
—EF-NF —F—= —F=F —F——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT TET FHTT THETT
Assets and liabilities EERARE
Total assets BEE 93,887 95,990 82,955 73,710
Total liabilities BEE (29,420) (42,617) (79,441) (72,134)
Total equity T EER 64,467 53,373 3,614 1,676
Note: MI5E -

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

No financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010 have been
published.

The financial information for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 were extracted from
the listing prospectus of the Group dated 7 June 2013. Such summary was prepared as if
the current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout these financial years
and is presented on the basis as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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